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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and
mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance
is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly
disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or

in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Mindtell
Technology Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there
are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement

herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRBESE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Mindtell
Technology Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present to you
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 30 November 2024.

REVIEW

The Group’s operation is mainly located in Malaysia. The Group has
provided system integration and computer related services since 2006
and continuously diversified our business to general trading services
in relation to IT services and provision of management advice and
consultancy services regarding computer softwares and information
technology. The Group provided IT services to both private and public
sectors and our customers include banks and financial institutions,
government and statutory bodies, education institutions, IT services

firms, software principals and other small and medium enterprises.

Lately the group has witnessed significant technological
advancements, particularly in the banking industry, with innovations like
Artificial Intelligence, Blockchain, and Big Data driving transformation
and digitisation. This ongoing transformation and digitisation driven by
customer demand and external competition are key demand drivers
that will significantly impact all our major business lines. Structural
changes in the industry and the proliferation of fintech in every vertical
of financial services have enabled us to engage in and potentially
secure several substantial contracts to enhance our customers’
technology and digital infrastructure in FY2025. The Group is actively
bidding to secure new contracts to enhance its business performance
and continued to develop advanced version of its existing IT products
in order to increase the competitive edge of its technical advantage.
The Group is also looking for appropriate investment opportunities to
strengthen the core business of the Group. Furthermore, the Group will
focus on executing the business strategies and plays to the relative
strength.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETRBESE

OUTLOOK

The complexity of business delivery has grown significantly over time.
As markets evolve and interest rates continue to rise, businesses
face increasing pressure to enhance efficiency and effectiveness.
As we enter FY2025, we see strong momentum in deal-making, with
our engagement teams actively collaborating with both existing and
prospective clients to tailor solutions that align with their budgets
and enhance their competitiveness. The financial services industry
is undergoing a long and complex evolution, driven by the need for
digital transformation. Many large financial institutions continue to
grapple with legacy systems that lack flexibility and fail to deliver
valuable insights or superior customer experiences. The rising costs of
maintaining these outdated systems also present operational concerns
for regulators. These industry shifts reinforce our value proposition as

we support our customers in modernising their core systems.

Digital customer engagement and regulatory compliance remain top
priorities, while cloud technology continues to offer greater flexibility
and cost advantages over traditional on-premise models. To address
these needs, our product suite now includes SaaS solutions, further
reducing infrastructure costs for our customers. The increasing
focus on Artificial Intelligence (“Al”) and its practical applications
is also shaping the industry’s future. We are closely monitoring Al
developments and making strategic investments to integrate Al-driven

solutions into our offerings.

With years of experience, the Group has built a strong foundation and
is well-positioned to navigate market uncertainties while delivering
sustainable growth. While we remain vigilant in monitoring external
factors that may impact our business, we continue to witness growing
demand for our solutions, particularly in the public financial services
sector. Our customers trust us to support and guide them through core
modernisation, enabling them to strengthen their digital capabilities.
As we move forward, we remain committed to fostering partnerships,
staying close to our customers, and delivering cutting-edge solutions

that position them for success in the Al-driven era.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EREBRESE

The Group will continue to pursue the following business strategies:

(i) Continue to anchor ourselves to be the major technology service
provider to the commercial financial services industry, as well as

public financial services.

(i) To promote new research and development solution to venture
into unexplored verticals, sector, and industry via potential

investment partner.

(i) Emphasizing partnership with Software Companies such as IBM
and Oracle to build new business that runs and empower by

respective platforms and products.

(iv) Looking to establish partnership and potential acquisition to

broaden the product offering.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our sincere gratitude
to our shareholders, bankers, customers and business partners for
their support and trust placed on us. Additionally, | express gratitude
to our management and employees for their remarkable dedication
and contributions, which have been instrumental in overcoming the
challenges we faced in the previous year. Our business revolves
around fostering robust connections and trust with all our stakeholders,
and we eagerly anticipate the future. With our capable management
and professional teams, | am confident that the Group will successfully

attain our business objectives.

Yours sincerely,

Chong Yee Ping
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 February 2025
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DN

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is an IT service provider based in Malaysia and principally
engaged in the design, procurement, installation and maintenance of
customised systems application for corporate customers. Our services

mainly include:

(i) System integration and development — development and
customisation of corporate IT system applications on project
basis, either in the capacity as a main contractor or as a

subcontractor;

(i) IT outsourcing — performance of specific tasks for development
and customisation of corporate IT system applications which are

within our expertise under the supervision of customers; and

(i) Maintenance and consultancy — maintenance and support of the

developed IT system applications.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue was derived from three principal businesses,
namely, system integration and development services, IT outsourcing
services and maintenance and consultancy services which are

analysed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 30 November 2024, the Group recorded a
increase in total revenue by approximately 17.0% to approximately
RM14.2 million (2023: approximately RM12.2 million). The increase
in revenue was mainly due to increase in revenue generated from
system integration and development services and maintenance and
consultancy services offset against the decrease in the IT outsourcing

services.

Details of changes in the revenue derived from system integration and
development services, IT outsourcing services, and maintenances and

consultancy services are analysed below.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERENWR DN

System integration and development services

For system integration and development services, the revenue
increased by approximately 14.4% to approximately RM12.9 million
for the year ended 30 November 2024 (2023: approximately RM11.3
million). The increase was primarily due to the commencement of a
new project involving the sales of externally purchased software and
hardware, contributing approximately RM3.5 million in revenue for the
year ended 30 November 2024.

IT outsourcing services

For IT outsourcing services, the revenue decreased by approximately
66.8% to approximately RM0.2 million for the year ended 30 November
2024 (2023: approximately RM0.6 million). The primary reason for the
decline was a reduction in the amount of time devoted to outsourcing
services, which was due to the allocation of the Company’s staff to
internal projects instead of provision of IT outsourcing services to
external customers.

Maintenance and consultancy services

For maintenance and consultancy services, the revenue increased
by approximately 281.7% to approximately RM 1.1 million for the year
ended 30 November 2024 (2023: approximately RMO0.3 million). This
significant growth was mainly driven by the initiation of a new project
in the previous financial year, which began contributing revenue in
July 2023. While the 2023 financial year captured only partial-year
earnings from this project, the full-year impact was realised in 2024.
Furthermore, the confirmation of renewals for several maintenance
projects also played a role in boosting revenue, leading to the
remarkable increase observed for the year ended 30 November 2024.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The following table sets forth a breakdown of gross profit and gross
profit margin for the years indicated:
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DN

The gross profit increased from approximately RM2.6 million for year
ended 30 November 2023 to approximately RM4.1 million for the
year ended 30 November 2024. The gross profit margin increased
from approximately 21.7% for the year ended 30 November 2023
to approximately 28.8% for the year ended 30 November 2024. The
increase in gross profit margin was mainly due to the increase in gross
profit margin from system integration and development services and IT

outsourcing services.
Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately 33.1% to
approximately RM5.4 million for the year ended 30 November 2024
(2028: approximately RM8.1 million). The decrease was attributable to

the decrease in the amortisation of intangible assets and staff costs.
Finance costs

The finance costs decreased by approximately 13.1% to approximately
RM73,000 for the year ended 30 November 2024 (2023: approximately
RM84,000). The reduction in finance costs was primarily due to a

decrease in finance charges on interest-bearing borrowings.
Income tax expenses

As the Group recorded a loss for the year ended 30 November 2024,

no provision for income tax has been made (2023: Nil).

Loss for the year

The Group recorded a loss of approximately RM1.1 million for the year
ended 30 November 2024 (2023: approximately RM5.4 million). The
decrease in loss was mainly due to the increase in gross profit and the

decrease in administrative expenses as analysed above.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERENWR DN

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At 30 November 2024, the total borrowings of the Group amounted to
approximately RM1.7 million (2023: approximately RM1.6 million) which
comprised interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities. Details
on the effective interest rate and maturity profile of the Group’s total
borrowings are set out in Notes 13 and 21 to the consolidated financial

statements.

At 30 November 2024, the gearing ratio of the Group was 64.5% (2023:
42.1%). Gearing ratio is calculated based on total borrowings divided

by total equity at the end of the financial year.

At 30 November 2024, the Group’s net current assets amounted to
approximately RM1.4 million (2023: approximately RM2.5 million).
The current ratio of the Group was approximately 1.2 times (2023:
approximately 1.4 times). Current ratio is calculated based on total
current assets divided by total current liabilities at the end of the

financial year.

The Group’s operations are financed principally by revenue generated
from its business operation, available bank balances and cash as well
as interest-bearing borrowings. The Board will continue to follow a
prudent treasury policy in managing its bank balances and cash and
maintain a strong and healthy liquidity position to ensure that the Group

is well positioned to achieve its business objectives and strategies.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 November 2024, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities (2023: nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30 November 2024, the Group did not have significant capital

commitments contracted but not provided for (2023: nil).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

At 30 November 2024, the Group did not have any significant
investments (2023: nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DN

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 30 November 2024, the Group had obtained banking facilities
on issuance of bank guarantees granted by certain creditworthy
banks, which were guaranteed by the restricted bank balances of
approximately RM156,000 (2023: approximately RM384,000) as set out

in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

At 30 November 2024, the interest-bearing borrowings were secured
by properties owned by the Group with aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately RM1.1 million (2023: approximately RM1.1 million) as

set out in Note 21(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

FUTURE BUSINESS AND DEVELOPMENT PLAN
The Group actively pursues the following business strategies:

(i) Continue to anchor ourselves to be the major technology service
provider to the commercial financial services industry, as well as

public financial services.

(i) To promote new research and development solution to venture
into unexplored verticals, sector, and industry via potential

investment partner.

(i) Emphasizing partnership with Software Companies such as IBM
and Oracle to build new business that runs and empower by

respective platforms and products.

(iv) Looking to establish partnership and potential acquisition to

broaden the product offering.

EEEA
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERENWRDN

Details of the Group’s future business and development plans are set

out below:

(i) Continue to anchor ourselves to be the major technology
service provider to the commercial financial services
industry, as well as public financial services.

We observed that the competition receded in Malaysia market.
Not many services provider is able to deliver core system, data
engineering, data cleansing and data quality, big data analytics,
digitalization channel, mobility application, compliance works, as

well as middleware services for a financial service.

Possessed with many significant key references, we are quite
the preferred and certified technology consulting service firm for

the market.

(ii) To promote new research and development solution to
venture into unexplored verticals, sector, and industry via

potential investment partner.

In the next financial year, we will explore with potential investor,
both technology and fund raising, to funnel new research and
development for a new vertical, new sector of market, as well as

new industry.

In the past track record, the group has been focusing only
on financial services industry, such as banks and insurance
companies. We also focused on public financial services such

as central banks, social security, as well as retirement fund.

We will plan key research in fraud management and how
the solution can reap the benefit of private cloud Artificial

Intelligence.

These new investments will possess high potential of unlocking
new sectorial revenue, opportunity, as well as future product

roadmap.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERBNWR DN

(iii) Emphasizing partnership with Software Companies such
as IBM and Oracle to build new business that runs and
empower by respective platforms and products.

Our collaboration with Oracle has just led to a successful win
of a new contract. We also have many in pipelines working with
their compliance software focusing in anti-money laundering
area. This symbiotic relationship will continue to gather more
success in the Southeast Asia region, including country like

Indonesia, Thailand, and Cambodia.

We are investing into staff training, sales personnel hiring and
brand marketing to spearhead the partnership so they will only
promote the group as the preferred technology and business

partner in the region.

(iv) Looking to establish partnership and potential acquisition to
broaden the product offering.

We are actively seeking companies with promising products
to enhance our offerings for both existing and new markets.
Our goal is to establish strategic partnerships and explore
potential acquisitions, enabling us to stay at the forefront of
market evolution-especially with the rapid advancements in Al

technology.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the year ended 30 November 2024, the Group did not have
any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and

joint ventures.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of the business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in Malaysian Ringgit and Hong Kong dollars. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of its foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
management monitors our foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERENWR DN

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 November 2024, the Group had a total of 64 employees (2023:
59) in Hong Kong and Malaysia. For the year ended 30 November
2024, total staff costs and related expenses of the Group (including
the Directors’ remuneration) were approximately RM8.0 million (2023:
approximately RM8.6 million).

Employees’ remuneration is determined with reference to market terms
and the performance, qualifications and experience of employees.
Apart from the statutory retirement benefits and medical benefits,
the Group also provides trainings to employees to enhance their
knowledge and maintain the quality of our services.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group joins a mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. Under the MPF
Scheme, the Group is required to make contributions to the scheme
at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.

The subsidiaries of the Group in Malaysia also operate Employees
Provident Fund (the “EPF”) for their employees in accordance with the
statutory requirements prescribed by the relevant Malaysian laws and
regulations. The Group is required to contribute certain percentage
(6%-13%) of their payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions.

For the years ended 30 November 2024 and 2023, there were no
forfeited contributions which were available to reduce the Group’s
existing level of contributions to the MPF Scheme and the EPF.

For the year ended 30 November 2024, the total amount contributed
by the Group to the schemes was approximately RM748,000 (2023:
approximately RM769,000).

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERGREEREEN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (“Mr. Chong”), aged 45, the founder of the
Group, was appointed as the chairman of the Board, chief executive
officer and executive Director of the Company on 27 February 2018.
Mr. Chong is also a director of the subsidiaries of the Company,
namely Excel Elite Global Limited, Tandem Advisory Sdn. Bhd. and
Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. He is mainly responsible for formulating the overall
business development strategy and planning; overseeing the Group’s
performance and management; and leading and representing the

Group in negotiation with potential business partners.

Mr. Chong is experienced in the field of system integration and
development as a software engineer. From 2003 to 2007, Mr. Chong
worked in iPower Berhad, a company engaged in system integration
based in Malaysia. From March 2017 to December 2020, Mr. Chong
was a director of C.I.S Integrated Sdn. Bhd., a company engaged in
the provision of online home design solutions. In the past 11 years,
Mr. Chong has been working relentlessly to build up the Group.
In particular, he has participated in the development of NS3 and
CUSTPRO, the two self-developed IT products of the Group.

Mr. Chong obtained a Bachelor’'s degree of Information Technology
majoring in software engineering with honours from Multimedia
University in Malaysia in May 2003. Subsequently, he completed
three IBM professional certification programs, which are IBM Certified
Specialist DB2 and IBM Certified Database Administrator respectively
in 2004 and IBM Certified System Administrator — Websphere
Application Server Network Deployment in 2006.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESRGREEREEN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang ("Mr. Siah"), aged 47, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 27 February 2018. Mr. Siah is also a director

of the subsidiaries of the Company, namely Concorde Asia Sdn. Bhd.

In 2005, Mr. Siah founded CSS MSC Sdn. Bhd., which focuses on,
among others, business intelligence and data warehousing, until his

resignation at the end of 2017.

In December 2017, Mr Siah acquired Commonarcs Sdn Bhd and turn it
into a focus of real estate investment holding. The business is currently

focusing on office space rental.

In September 2019, Mr Siah also acquired BDX Asia Sdn Bhd with
its unique intellectual property, a rule based scorer specializing in
rule base automation process useful in public financial services and

commercial financial market.

In December 2022, Mr Siah invested in Bellsnord Sdn Bhd as a
significant shareholder, a business that is focusing in developing the
next generation of digital core banking system. There is great potential

of industrial transformation anticipated in the next 10 years.

Mr. Siah is also the director of Rivermains Sdn. Bhd., a new business
that will be expanded and focusing on bio-dynamic oriented

agricultural activity, together with its educational activities.

Mr. Siah obtained a Bachelor's degree of Engineering (Mechanical)
with honors from University of Malaya in September 2002.
Subsequently, he received an ITIL Foundation Certificate in IT Service
Management in February 2005 and an ITIL Manager's Certificate in IT

Service Management in September 2005.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESERGREEREEN

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Lam Pang (“Mr. Lam”), aged 56, was appointed as a non—

executive Director on 8 March 2018.

Mr. Lam has around 30 years of extensive experience in trading
between the PRC and Hong Kong, and property investment in the
PRC. He founded Stars (Holdings) Limited (now known as Stars Pacific
Limited), of which he has been the director and has been engaged
in trading business since 1992. He was the chairman of GOME
Electrical Appliances Holding Limited (now known as GOME Retail
Holdings Limited), a listed company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 0493) from December 2000 to April 2002 and
an executive director from September 2000 to May 2007. Afterwards,
Mr. Lam was an executive director of | R & ZEE R M ERE Q7
(Shandong Jintai Group Co., Ltd), a listed company on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 600385) from July 2007 to June 2013,
and a director of Blossomhill Investment Limited (formerly known as
Special Fine Investment and Management Limited) from December
2013 to October 2015. From 2015 to October 2019, Mr. Lam was
the general manager ofj#if = 18 5 2% 1 % & R 2 Al(Hunan Fu Heng
Construction Development Co., Ltd.), which is principally engaged in

infrastructure and property development.

Mr. Lam currently serves as the consultant of % JI| 77 {8 &5 X (L T 52
& (Shenzhen Association of Chinese Traditional Culture Studies),
G BB B A 1 (2 2 (2 R B B T {E % 8 &(Health Science
and Technology Work Committee of China Association for Promoting
International Economic & Technical Cooperation) and R E L& 2

(China pre-Qin History Society).

Mr. Lam graduated from Pui Ying Secondary School in late 1980s.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Siew Kin Meng (“Mr. Siew”), aged 66, was appointed as an

independent non-executive Director on 1 May 2023.

Mr. Siew is a member of the Malaysian Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experience in auditing, banking,
manufacturing, property development, risk management and corporate

governance in Malaysia, Hong Kong, England and Canada.

Mr. Siew began his career as an auditor in various public accounting
firms from 1984 to 1993. He then joined Hong Leong Finance as a
finance manager between 1993 to 1996. He took up the position as
a general manager of Panji Timor Group from 1996 to 2005. Mr. Siew
was the group chief financial officer of Lotus KFM Bhd (formerly
Kuantan Flour Mills Berhad), a listed company in Malaysia (Stock code:
8303.KL) from 2005 to 2008. He then joined Bank Simpanan Nasional,
a government linked company in Malaysia as the chief financial
officer from 2008 to 2015, and subsequently became the deputy chief
executive officer of the same bank until 2018. Since 2018, Mr, Siew has
been the group chief financial officer of Maju Holdings Sdn. Bhd. Since
2019, he has been appointed as a director of Instapay Technologies
Sdn. Bhd. He was appointed as the chairman of the audit committee of

the same company in 2020.

Mr. Siew graduated from the University of Malaya with a bachelor’s

degree in Accounting in 1984.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Dato’ Yeong Kok Hee (“Dato’ Yeong”), aged 65, was appointed as an

independent non-executive Director on 1 May 2023.

Dato’ Yeong has close to 40 years of experience in different capacities
with a primary focus on the information technology and consulting
industries. Dato’ Yeong commenced his sales and marketing
management career in 1983, starting in the credit card business, then
ventured into the fast-moving consumer goods sector, and thereafter
the electronics and computer equipment services industries. In 1999,
he was the vice president of CSC Malaysia Sdn. Bhd (formerly known
as CSA (M) Berhad). In the early 2000s, Dato’ Yeong was the chairman
of ES Ceramics Technology Berhad. From 2003 to 2017, he served
as a member in the executive and management review committee
of Malayan Banking Berhad and CSC Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Between
October 2007 to January 2018, Dato’ Yeong was the independent
non-executive director of Citaglobal Berhad (formerly known as
WZ Satu Berhad), and for several years during the same period
also served as a member of the audit committee, the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the same company. From
June 2018 to May 2023, he was the chairman of Cardzone Sdn. Bhd.,
a leading provider of card management system consulting services for

the banking and financial services industry.

Dato’ Yeong completed the Asian International Executive Program
and the Joint Management course at INSEAD, Singapore campus
in the mid-1990s. Before that, he has completed various education
programmes at Kettering Technical College, Central London College,
and the London School of Economics and Political Science in the
United Kingdom.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Ms. Lau Meng Hong (“Ms. Lau”), aged 47, was appointed as an

independent non-executive Director on 1 September 2023.

Ms. Lau has over 20 years of experience in the field of legal and
corporate governance in Singapore and Malaysia. From 2005 to 2013,
Ms. Lau became a partner at M/S Gan, Lau & Associate and she was
responsible for delivering strategic legal solutions to diverse corporate
clientele. Ms. Lau also served as the group legal advisor for Leong Hup
International Berhad from 2005 to 2012. From 2013 to 2017, Ms. Lau
served as a legal advisor at Kendo Trading Pte Ltd (Singapore) and
she is presently a director of several prominent companies, including
Fokus Bonanza Sdn Bhd, Wangsa Premium Sdn Bhd, Qiang Yuan
(M) Sdn. Bhd., Supergenics Therapeutic Sdn. Bhd. and Supergenics
Berhad.

Ms. Lau graduated from the University of Melbourne with double

bachelor’'s degrees in law and commerce (accounting) in 2002.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Pang Hen Yong (“Mr. Pang”), aged 46, is the chief technology
officer of the Group. He joined the Group in December 2012 and is
responsible for all aspects of strategic IT planning, implementation,
and support as an integral component of the business plan. He is also
responsible for budgeting, design and support of all technological

issues of the Group.

Mr. Pang worked as the technical consultant for DKSH Holding AG,
also known as DiethelmKellerSiberHegner, a company listed on the
SIX Swiss Exchange (Stock Code: DKSH) from March 2007 to July
2011. From July 2011 to December 2012, he worked as the technical
consultant for GlaxoSmithKline plc, a company listed on both the
London Stock Exchange (Stock Code: GSK) and the New York Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: GSK).

Mr. Pang obtained a Bachelor’'s degree of Information Technology with
honours from Universiti Tenaga Nasional in August 2003. He received
an ITIL Foundation Certificate in IT Service Management in October
2012. In 2014, he completed IBM professional certification program,
namely IBM Certified System Administrator.

Mr. Wong Puh Yih (“Mr. Wong”), aged 43, is the head of research
and development department of the Group. He was appointed as a
member of the technical team of the Group in April 2014. His main
responsibilities include: (i) development and design of product from
concept to specifications and implementation and (ii) coordination
with internal or external engineering teams on the new process and

equipment design, scale-up, capability improvement and validation.

Mr. Wong obtained an Associate Degree in Information Technology
from New Era College in 2006. He is certified as a Sun Certified
Programmer for the Java Platform in 2010. In 2014, he completed
two IBM professional certification programs, namely IBM Certified

Database Administrator and IBM Certified Database Associate.

Additionally, he achieved the Professional Scrum Master™ | (PSM )

certification in 2024.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Ms. Lee Chin Yee (“Ms. Lee”), aged 46, is the project director of the
Group. She joined the Group in February 2018 and is responsible for
leading, overseeing and managing various project implementation of

the Group.

Ms. Lee had over 20 years of experiences in business and technology
software implementation and consulting experience, serving various
types of entities including government authorities and private entities
in the financial services industry. She also had experiences in leading
business analyst team to analyse business operation, providing IT

consultation and delivering business software solutions.

Ms. Lee started her career as a software engineer in 2000. Ms. Lee
served as the functional consultant for a business intelligence reporting
project of Hong Leong Bank from 2008 to 2009. Ms. Lee then served
as the senior functional consultant for a borrower credit information
data mart project of Bank Negara Malaysia from 2009 to 2011. She
then served as the change control manager of a new submission
central bank reporting system project of OSK Bank in 2013. Ms. Lee
also worked as a business analyst lead for (i) an integrated statistical
system project of Bank Negara Malaysia from 2011 to 2015, (ii) a XBRL
corporate tax worksheet submission project of Lembaga Hasil Dalam
Negeri Malaysia from 2015 to 2016, (iii) an application software system,
infrastructure and services for ICT project of PERKESO from 2016
to present, (iv) a central bank reporting and COA mapping blueprint
project of ZANDBANK (Dubai) in 2019, (v) Smartfield mobility platform
project of Horizon Energy Group (New Zealand) in 2021 to 2022 and
(vi) E-Invoicing Submission System project for Alliance Bank Malaysia
Berhad in 2024.

Ms. Lee has obtained a Master Degree of Business Administration
from Anglia Ruskin University in 2021 and a Bachelor Degree in
Computer Science from Coventry University in 2000. She received an
ITIL Foundation Certificate in IT Service Management in 2015. In 2013,
she completed the Certified Professional for Requirement Engineering
Foundation program while in 2000, she completed the Microsoft

Certified System Engineer NT program.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Yeung Kwong Wai (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 52, was appointed as the

company secretary of the Company on 1 June 2023.

Mr. Yeung has more than 24 years of auditing, accounting, financial
management and corporate governance experience. He is a
Certified Public Accountant (Practising) of HKICPA and a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is also
a CFA charterholder. From December 1997, he worked at Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu and Ernst & Young in Hong Kong for a total of
approximately five years, where he was primarily responsible for
performing external financial audit for listed and private companies.
He acted as the financial controller and company secretary of
Huafeng Textile International Group Limited (now known as Ping
Shan Tea Group Limited) (stock code: 364), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from September 2003 to June
2005, where he was primarily responsible for the company’s overall
financial management and corporate governance. He joined Hembly
International Holdings Limited (now known as Capital Environment
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 3989), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange, in November 2005 as an assistant to
the chairman, and was appointed as a joint company secretary from
August 2007 to July 2008, where he was primarily responsible for the
company'’s business development and corporate governance. He had
been a director of an accounting firm, CYC CPA Limited (3255 & 5t6
E5HTAMRAF)and Global Glory CPA Limited (LB &I =K A
R A7), in Hong Kong from March 2010 to June 2014 and from July
2015 to May 2021 respectively, where he was primarily responsible for
providing corporate advisory services, company secretarial services
and external financial audit for companies in Hong Kong and PRC.
Mr. Yeung was the company secretary of Nexion Technologies Limited
(stock code: 8420), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange,
from July 2016 to December 2017. He was also an independent
non-executive director of Zhi Cheng Holdings Limited (now known
as Dadi International Group Limited) (stock code: 8130), a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange from September 2015 to March
2018. On 11 December 2020, he was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Grand Power Logistics Group Limited (stock

code: 8489), a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

SREERE#®)

BRERE(BELE] 2R R_T_=%F
NA—BEZERERRRNRAWE -

BEERES S5t UBEEREEER
E%ﬁEL%iW%ﬁ XA BEEF AR EH
GBI R ER SR EKE - R AR
TRMAOMEB - B - AEF+ AR FRE
S ENEE A R LKA EE A L TIE
MOFE TE2AERLETRLARBETING
BB BN _EE=FNAE_ZTZTRF
NARBIAMER LT RRAELHBEEEE
BERAR (RBIFLUAEEEERAR) (KK
ﬁ%ﬁ% 364) 2B RERARWE T EEBE
RAZERUBEEREEER BR_-F
%ﬁiﬂL*HﬂD)\Hﬁ%“PﬁEﬁiim“TIE%?Z"J
BRZEEERAR CRBEEAREERARA
&) (B 5% - 3989) (EBLE BB - W —
EELFENAZ_TTN\FLARZEIRBE
RAME TEBERRRZIEBERREE
ER-WERN_E-—TF-_AE_T-NFAX
AR—ZZE-RAFLtAZ_FT_—FHADNR
REGTMEBABR AR MBS ES

FMERABMAETMEBM2ES ‘IEE
BERBERTEARRFEEERRE -

MiﬁEﬂ‘iﬁﬁ\\ﬁBﬁﬁf’lﬁﬁ°%5‘E$EA_§—_
FLAZ T —+tF+ A BB MGEM LT
A A)Nexion Technologies Limited (A% {7 X 5%
8420) Z REIME - R _E—HEFENAZEZ
Z-N\F=AMABEZMGEM LT R RS HE
REBRAF R AMBERERER QA )(Hx
(AR 8130)25%_4##1{7%% cHRZTZ
ZF+=-A+—8" % £ 7= B 2 FTGEM
iﬁ@ﬂ%@ﬁ%iﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁ(foﬁﬁ?)ﬁ1
8489) KB FFNTTE S ©

2024 ANNUAL REPORT 4%k

25



26

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEERHN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

He is currently a director of corporate services of Ascent Corporate
Services Limited and is responsible for assisting listed companies in

professional corporate secretarial work.

Mr. Yeung graduated from Concordia University, Montreal, Canada in

October 1997 with a major in accounting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXRERB|E

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Maintaining the high levels of corporate governance and business
ethics is one of the Group’s major objectives. The Group considers
that conducting business in a reliable way will maximise its long term

interests and those of its stakeholders.

The Company has adopted the principles and the code provisions in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Part 2
of Appendix C1 to the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year ended 30 November 2024, the Company had complied
with the CG Code, except for the derivations as stated below:

Code Provision C.2.1

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly

established and set out in writing.

Mr. Chong Yee Ping is currently the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and is responsible for
formulating the overall business development strategy and planning of
the Group. In view that Mr. Chong has been responsible for the overall
management of the Group since its inception, the Board believes that it
is in the best interest of the Group to continue to have Mr. Chong taken
up both roles for effective management and business development.
The Board considers that the balance of power and authority,
accountability and independent decision-making under our present
arrangement will not be impaired because of the diverse background
and experience of the other executive Director, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors. Further, the Audit Committee
has free and direct access to the Company’s external auditors and
independent professional advisers when it considers necessary.
Therefore, the Directors consider that the deviation from code provision

C.2.1 of the CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance.
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In order to maintain good corporate governance and to fully comply
with code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board comprises
five other experienced and high-calibre individuals including two
non-executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors who would be able to offer advice from various perspectives.
In addition, for major decisions of the Group, the Company will consult
the relevant Board committees and senior management. Considering
the present size and the scope of business of the Group, the Board
considers that it is not in the best interest of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole to separate the roles of the chairman and
the chief executive officer, because the separation would render the
decision-making process of the Company less efficient than the current
structure. Therefore, the Board considers that the present arrangement
is beneficial to and in the interest of the Company and the shareholders

as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set
out in Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “Standard of
Dealings”), as the code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, each
of the Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the
Standard of Dealings from the date on which the shares of the
Company were first listed on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”)

and up to the date of this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

At the date of this annual report, the Board consists of one executive
Director, two non-executive Directors and three independent non-

executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang

Mr. Lam Pang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dato’ Yeong Kok Hee

Mr. Siew Kin Meng

Ms. Lau Meng Hong

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual

report.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group, and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance. The Board is primarily responsible for the overall
business plans and strategies of the Group, the implementation
of the Group’s policies and strategies, monitoring of the business
performance, internal controls and risk management, environmental,
social and governance as well as supervision of the management of

the Group.

The Board delegates daily management, administration and operation
of the Group to the management. The delegated functions are
reviewed by the Board to ensure that they accommodate the needs of

the Group.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND RETIREMENT OF
DIRECTORS

The Directors have the power to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy on the board or as an addition to the
existing board. Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of members after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any
Director appointed as an addition to the existing board shall hold office
only until the next following annual general meeting of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. The Directors to retire by rotation shall include any Director who
wishes to retire and not offer himself/herself for re-election. Any further
Directors so to retire shall be those who have been longest in office
since their last re-election or appointment but as between persons
who became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day those
to retire will (unless they otherwise agree among themselves) be
determined by lot.

DIVERSITY OF THE BOARD

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Nomination Committee monitors the implementation of the board
diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises six Directors, one of
which is female. Three of our Directors, namely, Mr. Chong Yee Ping,
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang and Ms. Lau Meng Hong, are between the age
group of 40 — 49 while two of our Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Pang
and Mr. Siew Kin Meng, are between the age group of 50 — 59 and the
other Director, namely Dato’ Yeong Kok Hee, is between the age group
of 60-69. We have four senior management, one of which is female.

All board and senior management appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Details on the gender ratio of the Group together with the relevant data
can be found in the ESG Report of the Company for the year ended 30
November 2024.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive Directors have been appointed for a fixed term.
Pursuant to the letters of appointment between the Company and
the non-executive Directors, the non-executive Directors have been
appointed for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date which may be terminated by either party by giving three months’
written notice. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by

rotation in accordance with the Articles.

The Company has complied with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules
relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors, with at least one of them having appropriate professional

qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers the independent
non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the

independence guidelines set out in the GEM Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules
and the code provision D.3.3 of the CG Code. The Audit Committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely Dato.
Yeong Kok Hee, Mr. Siew Kin Meng and Ms. Lau Meng Hong. Mr. Siew

Kin Meng is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board
in the assessment of auditors’ independence, appointment,
re-appointment, removal and remuneration, to provide an independent
view of the effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management system, to oversee the audit
process and to perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned
by the Board. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group, and
discussing auditing, internal control, risk management and financial
reporting matters including the review of quarterly results, interim
results and annual results and financial statements for the year ended
30 November 2024.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision E.1.2 of the CG
Code. The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Dato. Yeong Kok Hee, Mr. Siew Kin
Meng and Ms. Lau Meng Hong. Dato. Yeong Kok Hee is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include (but
without limitation): (i) making recommendations to the Directors
on the policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors
and senior management and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policies on such remuneration;
(i) determining the terms of the specific remuneration package of the
Directors and senior management; and (iii) reviewing and approving
performance-based remuneration with reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Directors from time to time.

From 2024 onwards, the Remuneration Committee will also review the
share option scheme and other share schemes (if any) of the Company
on annual basis. During the year ended 30 November 2024, since
there was no share option granted under the share option scheme of
the Company, no material matter relating to the share option scheme
has been reviewed by the Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Company also established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision B.3.1 of the
CG Code. The Nomination Committee consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Dato. Yeong Kok Hee, Mr. Siew Kin
Meng and Ms. Lau Meng Hong. Dato. Yeong Kok Hee is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

The primary function of the Nomination Committee is to, inter alia, make
recommendations to the Board to fill vacancies on the same based on
the Company'’s board diversity policy and nomination policy.

NOMINATION POLICY

The secretary of the Company shall call a meeting of the Nomination
Committee, and invite nominations of candidates from the Board
members for consideration by the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who are not
nominated by the Board members. The factors which would be used
as reference by the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate for a director include, inter alia, reputation
for integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
experience that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate
strategy, willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a board member, diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives
appropriate to the Company’s business. The Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations for the Board’s consideration.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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BOARD MEETINGS

For a regular board meeting, at least 14 days’ notice will be given
to the Board members. For other board and committee meetings,
reasonable notices are generally given. An agenda and board papers
of the regular meetings are sent to all Directors in advance within
reasonable time and all Directors are free to contribute and share their
views at the meetings. Minutes of all board and committee meetings

are circulated to the Directors and open for inspection by the Directors.

The Company does not announce its quarterly results and hence does

not consider the holding of quarterly regular meetings as necessary.

The Articles contain provisions requiring the Directors to abstain from
voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving
any contract or arrangement or any other proposal in which such

Directors or any of their close associates have a material interest.

During the year ended 30 November 2024, the attendance of the
Directors at the board meetings, committee meetings and general

meetings are summarised as follows:

EXEER

REHNEFSRRNS EZTgXNEEED14
BB pEMEEERZEEEREME » —
RETREBEN THEHRALEREREEFEX
HTREERFBABELXEEREST H2RE
FURERLEHBEREDZFER -MEBES
ENEEEER IR NBATRTES UL
AHEFEERH-

RRBNRHEEESE AR TRASBELRE

TERTHEH -

ERAMSERNACTESTEAS LR EZ
FEFAWRELEMNETHEAFTEARSE L
ERMEARLHHEAMEMEZERERERT
Bt ANEEAR
RBEE-ZF-_NMF+-A=1THLFR - EF
HEEFEEER ZECERMBRAGZE
AT

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

HEERRY ETEERE

Audit Nomination Remuneration

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Name of Directors Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
Exg ENZEEE REEZ8%g FHEES
g g3 =E =E ] =E BRAE
Executive Directors HiTEs
Mr. Chong Yee Ping EEREE 2/2 - - - 11
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang AL L 2/2 - - - il
Mr. Lam Pang Mg & 0/2 - - - il
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Mr. Siew Kin Meng RRIRLE 212 2/2 11 11 11
Dato’ Yeong Kok Hee 2EGKEE 22 2/2 il 1 il
Ms. Lau Meng Hong ZsE Lt 2/2 2/2 11 11 0/0
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

According to code provision A.2 of the CG Code, the Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties of the

Company.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, continuous professional development of the Directors,
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this

corporate governance report.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 November
2024, the Group has selected suitable accounting policies in
accordance with international accounting principles and applied them
consistently. A statement by the auditor of the Company about its
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the independent
auditor’s report contained in this annual report. The Directors adopt
the going concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial
statements and are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Discussions on the Company’s environmental policies/performance
and our relationship with key stakeholders are covered by a separate
Environmental, Social and Governance Report which will be available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in due

course.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. For the year ended 30
November 2024, each of the Directors received regular updates and
presentations on changes and developments to the Group’s business
and to the legislative and regulatory environments in which the Group
operates, and was also encouraged to attend relevant training courses.
During the year ended 30 November 2024, the Directors participated
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways
of attending seminars and/or reading materials relevant to the Group’s
business, the GEM Listing Rules and directors’ duties, and provided
his or her training records to the Company on a yearly basis.

Executive Directors HiTESR

Mr. Chong Yee Ping EEMLA
Non-executive Directors FHTES

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang HEBRE LA
Mr. Lam Pang N e
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHITES
Mr. Siew Kin Meng BERIALAE
Dato’ Yeong Kok Hee EEBEE

Ms. Lau Meng Hong 208 Bl 22 +

EECHRAEXRRR

BECEEATAZTAKRXECAME 2
REFRLSHEBEEERE BREUEMEN
Rk -BE_Z-_NE+—RA=+HIE
B SESRKCHENLRER BHRLAEE
EBRAEBEEMEMNLEREERRNE
HRBEE  TESBLEAEIRRRE -8E
TE-NF+—A=+HLFE EEEEB
LR SR, REEEEAEEEBIME -
GEMEMBRARESHEN SN 2HEEW
SEEETHREY VEBSFRARAARMHRE
FlsRAC 8% o

Attending
seminars

HEWNE

Self-reading
EEE

The Company will from time to time provide briefings to all Directors
to refresh their duties and responsibilities. The Directors are also
encouraged to attend relevant training courses provided by legal
advisers and/or any appropriate institutions.

ARRFHAFAEZEBERREHREN  RIBER
Wz BEREE  UBESHERERERN
B/ SR E BB R 2 ABRIE IR -
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TRERHRE

COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING

During the year ended 30 November 2024, Mr. Yeung Kwong Wai, the

RBEZZ-_MFE+—-—A=+RHLFE AR
N

company secretary of the Company, had taken no less than 15 hours AZ AEIMEL X ELEECEBGEMETRA
of relevant professional trainings to update her skill and knowledge as MR EESTOMMSNEREEEEN - UE

required under the GEM Listing Rules.

FTEBE R A o

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION =% BB 2 Er
The Company engaged Forvis Mazars CPA Limited (“Forvis Mazars”) RARREREZERZSHMEBMERAA
as auditor for the year ended 30 November 2024. The analysis of the ([BEEmE)AEHEZE-_ZE-_NF+—A=+
auditor’'s remuneration for the year ended 30 November 2024 is set out BEFEZREM - BE-_FT-_WF+—A
as follow: T+ HIEFEZZEMEBFMOMETI AT
Fee amount
BEReHE
RM’'000
BFoT
Audit services Z B8R 7%
Forvis Mazars BEIBE 445
Local auditors in Malaysia (Not Forvis Mazars) BRADM A AZEE GEEEIHE) 29
Total mat 474

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has responsibility for maintaining appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems of the Group. The Board
has delegated responsibility to the Audit Committee to review the

Group’s risk management and internal control matters annually.

For the year ended 30 November 2024, the Group did not have an
internal audit function as required under code provision D.2.5 of
the CG Code. The Company has engaged an external independent
internal control consultant to review the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems based on code provision D.2.2 of the CG
Code. The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control review report
issued by the external independent consultant on the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems in respect of the year
ended 30 November 2024 and considered that they are effective and
adequate. The Board assessed the effectiveness of internal control
systems by considering the internal control review report and reviews

performed by the Audit Committee and concurred with them.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SUCH MEETING

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings shall at all time have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the secretary of the Company at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

b EE R AEBEEE

EEeR RSB ASEEERERZARERE
MABEZRZG EFESMERLTEL THE

T 8FRIAEEZEAREENANEZES
o

@i_v_E¢+ B=+BHLEE ~&H

EAEBEATUNZTAMEXED2SEIEAET
FTRE 2 NEBEZBEE - ARRIDIRBEEE
BRI Z SFRMEX D 2206 R T HNEB LN
B ETEM URBAEE2RAREREKRAES
EELG  c BREE S EMAIMNEB AN
BARNREHE-Z-_WF+—A=1tHILFE
ZRBEERADPEERFL A AT R
s TRARSEIERR EFTQKE
EASEERIREREZREZEGHTIBE
BEHEANSBERERG 2 AR WHEHERE
ﬁ_lo

BRREBARREIAERREBAER
EERZER

BIEE R AR F5815 - ] — sk ERNIEZ
EREARBRETLRARABRKAEA (AEAR
AIRREARG ZREE) +9 2 —KIREREM
RiRGESRMARD ﬂ%%ﬁiwiﬁﬁiﬁ
ER (ML BRRRZ BB EEEEME) -
ﬁﬁi@@%k%%ﬂﬁévuﬁﬁ%£x¢
BRZAEMEL: BEZREBEREE2ZERE
CEARNBEIT - ERE2EHE2IBAN - EF
eLEHRABHARBREZRF  AEE2EK
AT BEAREAFRELLE  ME2EK
ATRESEZRAMEEZMARERSIE
BARFREZERATERN-

2024 ANNUAL REPORT 4%k

37



38

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERB|E

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders. To ensure that the shareholders and potential investors
are provided with ready, equal and timely access to balanced and
understandable information about the Company, the Company has
established several channels to communicate with the shareholders as
follows:

(i) corporate communications such as annual reports, interim
reports, quarterly reports and circulars are issued in printed
form and are available on the website of the Stock Exchange at
www.hkexnews.hk and on the website of the Company at www.
mindtelltech.com;

(i) periodic announcements are published on the websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company;

(i) corporate information is made available on the Company’s
website; and

(iv)  annual and extraordinary general meetings provide a forum for
the shareholders to make comments and exchange views with
the Directors and senior management.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing shareholders and potential investors.
It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and the public.
Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong (Attention: The
Company Secretary).

The Company reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of the
shareholders’ communication policy and considered it to be effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company adopted the amended and restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Company on 19 September 2018 and it
took effect on the Listing Date. A copy of the amended and restated
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company is posted on
the Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s
website at www.mindtelltech.com. During the year ended 30 November

2023, the Company has adopted the second amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company by special
resolution passed on 27 April 2023 and effective on the same day.
Saved as disclosed, there was no change in the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company during the year ended 30
November 2024.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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The Directors are pleased to present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of Mindtell Technology Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 30 November 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the provision of system integration and
development services, IT outsourcing services and maintenance and
consultancy services. Details of its principal subsidiaries as at 30
November 2024 are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND FUTURE BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 November
2024 and future business development of the Group are set out in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion

and Analysis” of this annual report.

The risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing are set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report. In addition, various financial risks have been disclosed

in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of segment information are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated

financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 November 2024 and the
financial positions of the Company and the Group as at that date are
set out in the audited consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to

143 of this annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company by way of cash or shares. Any
distribution of dividends shall be in accordance with the Articles and

the distribution shall achieve continuity, stability and sustainability.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the shareholders. In proposing any
dividend payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the
Group’s earnings per share, the reasonable return on investment of the
investors and the shareholders in order to provide incentive to them
to continue to support the Group in their long-term development, the
financial conditions and business plan of the Group, and the market

sentiment and circumstances.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific

periods.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 30 November 2024.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 144 of this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial

statements in this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 30 November 2024, the revenue attributable
to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 37.7%
(2023: approximately 46.5%) of the Group’s total revenue and the
revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 87.9% (2023: approximately 84.7%) of the Group’s

total revenue.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 30 November 2024, the costs incurred in
respect of the Group’s largest supplier accounted for approximately
61.2% (2023: approximately 56.5%) of the Group’s total cost of
services and materials sold, excluding staff costs and the costs
incurred in respect of the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 91.3% (2023: approximately 96.7%) of the Group’s total

cost of services and materials sold, excluding staff costs.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates, or any
shareholder (who to the knowledge of the Directors own 5% or more
of the issued Shares of the Company) had any interest in any of the
Group’s major customers or suppliers during the year ended 30
November 2024.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 30 November 2024 are set out in Note 12

to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
ended 30 November 2024 are set out in Note 23 to the consolidated

financial statements.

DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended 30
November 2024.

RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 30 November 2024 are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 65 to 66 and in

Note 24(a) to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 November 2024, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company amounted to

approximately RM1.1 million.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

None of the Company or any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 30 November 2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer shares on a

pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 19 September 2018. The purpose of the Share
Option Scheme is to grant an option to subscribe for shares of the
Company (the “Option”) to eligible persons as defined in the Share
Option Scheme (including, inter alia, directors, employees, suppliers,
customers and consultants of the Group) as incentives or rewards for

their contribution to the Group.

Subject to rules on grant of options to connected persons of the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules, the total number of Shares
issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of our Group (including both exercised or outstanding options)
to each participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company for the time being, and any
further grant exceeding the said limit shall be subject to shareholders’

approval at general meeting.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The exercise price per Share under the Share Option Scheme will be a
price determined by the Directors but shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of a Share.

Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme will
remain in force for a period of 10 years from the date of its adoption on
19 September 2018, which shall expire on 18 September 2028. Since
the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to 30 November
2024, no Option has been granted by the Company. At the beginning
and the end of the year ended 30 November 2024 and as of the date
of this annual report, the Company had 39,000,000 shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme (representing 10% of the
existing issued share capital of the Company as at the date of the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme). An option may be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer. A sum of HK$1.00 shall be
payable on acceptance. Unless determined by the Directors otherwise,
there is no minimum holding period before it can be exercised. Details
of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the paragraph headed
“Share Option Scheme” of the appendix headed “Statutory and

General Information” of the Prospectus.

Save for the Share Option Scheme, the Company has not adopted any

other share scheme.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save and except for the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” above, no equity-linked
agreement that (i) will or may result in the Company issuing shares
or (ii) requires the Company enter into any agreement that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares, was entered into by the
Company during the year ended 30 November 2024 or subsisted at

the end of the year.
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DONATION

During the year ended 30 November 2024, the Group did not make
any charitable donations (2023: Nil).

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 30 November

2024 and up to the date of this annual report are as follows:
Executive Directors

Mr. Chong Yee Ping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang
Mr. Lam Pang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dato’ Yeong Kok Hee
Mr. Siew Kin Meng
Ms. Lau Meng Hong

DIRECTORS

Biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual

report.

Pursuant to the Articles, one-third of the Directors for the time being
(or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each
annual general meeting, provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three

years.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date and shall continue thereafter unless and until terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party
on the other and is subject to termination provisions therein and in the

Articles.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company for
a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date which may be

terminated by either party by giving three months’ written notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant to rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-

executive Directors to be independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY, REMUNERATION OF
DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emolument of the Directors and five individuals with
highest emoluments are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated

financial statements.

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is stipulated by
the Directors on the basis of the employees’ individual performance,

qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and determined by the Board, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and market

comparables.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ OR DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement
or contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director of the Company or an entity associated with him/her or a
controlling shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries has
or had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

any time during or at the end of the year ended 30 November 2024.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director is entitled to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which
he/she may sustain or incur in or about execution of duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto provided that such indemnity shall
not extend to any matter in respect of fraud or dishonesty committed
by the Director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance since February 2019, which provides appropriate cover for

the Directors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is of the view that save and except for the deviations from
code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the Company has met the code
provisions set out in the CG Code and Corporate Governance Report
contained in Appendix C1 to the GEM Listing Rules. A report on the
principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this

annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group recognises its responsibility to protect the environment
from its business activities. The Group has endeavored to comply
with the laws and regulations regarding environmental protection
and encourages environmental protection and promotes awareness

towards environmental protections among our staff and employees.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 30 November 2024, to the best of knowledge of
the Directors, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations by the Group that has a significant

impact on the businesses and operations of the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group are
set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 November 2024, the Directors are not aware
of any related party transactions which constituted a non-exempt
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction of the

Company under the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 30 November 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFQ”)), which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO; or
(b) pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred therein; or (c) pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68 of the GEM
Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange,

were as follows:

Long position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company:

EERETETBAEREARAREAE
ZEzKRG  HEROREZZESZR
KR

RZE-_WNF+—A=Z+H EENARAE
ETBABRARBIRERE ZE (TERE
BEGIESTIEB LS RBAERA ([EHFLBE
16 f511) EXVER) 2 Bk - MR HD REHFF
HEERESFRBE G EXVIBETRS
DERMEARARE I ZE@mIAE  F(b)
RATRIEEFH KB E KRG E3526BZF LR
ZiEFiEz B R MRz EEZIAR  S(c)HiR
BEGEM E T8 BI555.46 25 6815 B A& AR A
LBt Rz meoRkBmT

REXTROUEERD 2 HF A -

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s
Capacity and shares interested issued share
Name of Directors nature of interest (Note 2) capital
RERZROEE HARDAFE BITRA
BEEMR BERREREE (Ktit2) BO
Mr. Chong Yee Ping (Note 1) Interests of controlled corporation and person 196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
acting in concert
BRI (WE1) REEEREG L —RTBAL
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang (Note 1) Interests of controlled corporation and person 196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
acting in concert
SRS (A1) REEERG R —RTBAL
Mr. Lam Pang Beneficial owner 38,220,000 (L) 9.8%
RIS S EnlEEA

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

(continued)

Long position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company: (continued)

Notes:

(1) Delicate Edge Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chong
Yee Ping whereas King Nordic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang. Each of Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic
Limited holds 98,280,000 Shares, representing 25.2% of the total issued
share capital of the Company.

Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang are parties acting in
concert (having the meaning ascribed to it under the Hong Kong Code
on Takeovers and Mergers (the “Takeovers Code”) as confirmed by
them in writing. As such, each of Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin
Shyang, Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic Limited is deemed to be
interested in 196,560,000 Shares held by Delicate Edge Limited and King
Nordic Limited in aggregate under the SFO.

2) The Letter “L” denotes as long positions in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 November 2024, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company and/or any of their
respective associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and/or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or the GEM
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations” and “Share Option Scheme” above, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries or associated corporations was a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their respective spouse and children under 18
years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of the
shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
of its associated corporations at any time during the year ended 30
November 2024.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, at 30 November 2024, the following

persons have or are deemed or taken to have an interest and/or short

position in the shares or the underlying shares of the Company which

would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of

Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Long position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company:

Name of substantial shareholders

FERRER HB
Delicate Edge Limited
(Note 1)
Delicate Edge Limited
(Krst1)
King Nordic Limited (Note 1)

King Nordic Limited (4757 1)

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James

ARBEE

Mr. Lam Pang
AN bt

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

Capacity and nature of interest

SN RERUE

Beneficial owner and person acting in
concert

ERABAR—BITBAL

Beneficial owner and person acting in
concert

ERBEBAR—BITHAL

Beneficial owner

BB A

E\

Beneficial owner

EREFA

FERRREMATRERQARG KE
AR zEERAXE

BEEME RZZT-_NF+—A=+AH" M
TALTRAR BB AR O % B AR
EREFHRERERES LT FRGIEXVEBE2
REIDHZ G AMARARE 2 R R/
KR - HABERIRIEE 7 RIS 55 5336
GREARARNRAFEZRREM SR

KA o
READRGREERA 2 TR -

Percentage of
Number of the Company’s

shares interested issued share

(Note 2) capital
BERBEZROEE HARDRE BITRA
(Hi#t2) B
196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
196,560,000 (L) 50.4%
57,720,000 (L) 14.8%
38,220,000 (L) 9.8%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

(1) Delicate Edge Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Chong
Yee Ping whereas King Nordic Limited is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang. Each of Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic
Limited holds 98,280,000 Shares, representing 25.2% of the total issued
share capital of the Company.

Mr. Chong Yee Ping and Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang are parties acting in
concert (having the meaning ascribed to it under the Takeovers Code)
as confirmed by them in writing. As such, each of Mr. Chong Yee Ping,
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicate Edge Limited and King Nordic Limited is
deemed to be interested in 196,560,000 Shares held by Delicate Edge
Limited and King Nordic Limited in aggregate under the SFO.

2) The Letter “L” denotes as long positions in the shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 November 2024, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were

entered into or in existence during the year.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors and controlling shareholders of the Company nor
their respective associates (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules)
had any interest in any other companies as at 30 November 2024

which may, directly or indirectly compete with the Group’s business.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicate Edge Limited and
King Nordic Limited, being the controlling shareholders (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company, have entered into a
deed of non-competition dated 19 September 2018 in favour of the
Company (the “Deed of Non-Competition”). Details of the Deed of
Non-Competition was set out in the section headed “Relationship with

Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed that all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non— Competition have been complied
with by Mr. Chong Yee Ping, Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, Delicate Edge
Limited and King Nordic Limited up to the date of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float under the GEM Listing Rules since the Listing
Date and up to the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this

annual report.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 November
2024 was audited by Forvis Mazars CPA Limited, Certified Public

Accountants of Hong Kong.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 7 January 2025, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with subscribers pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue and allot 78,000,000 subscription
shares at HK$0.052 per subscription share (the “Subscription”),
which represent approximately 20.0% of the existing issued share
capital of the Company and approximately 16.7% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and
issue of the subscription shares immediately after completion of the
Subscription, assuming that there will be no change in the total number
of shares in issue (other than the issue of the subscription shares).
The net proceeds from the Subscription, after deducting all the
relevant expenses, will amount to approximately HK$4.0 million. The

Subscription was completed on 6 February 2025.

Details please refer to the Company’s announcement on 7 January
2025.

Save as the event disclosed above, as from 30 November 2024 to the
date of this annual report, the Board is not aware of any significant

events that have occurred which require disclosure herein.
On behalf of the board

Mr. Chong Yee Ping

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 28 February 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B %A

forvss
mazars

To the members of
Mindtell Technology Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Mindtell
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 143, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 November
2024, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including

material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30
November 2024, and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

FORVIS MAZARS CPA LIMITED
EERESTMEXBMRAT
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
V% B R R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HREEREE

Revenue recognition

W 25 B 5T

Refer to significant accounting policy and critical
accounting estimates and judgements in Note 2 and
the disclosures of revenue in Note 4 to the consolidated

financial statements.

REMF2z T2 HRIARBR S A KA
N4z R E B HRRKERE -

The Group recognised revenue of approximately
RM14,240,000 from the provision of system integration
and development services, IT outsourcing services and
maintenance and consultancy services for the year ended

30 November 2024.

EEERHRAEE T _NE+—A=+BILEEZ
REEZGEAEMAZERS - EABEINABRE A K 4
1& K BB AR 7% 2 W 25 49 55 ¥ 14,240,0007T °

HREZSER
BRERMcEXHE  BREZEESHRM
ECAHRC R A MBBREAMEERERZSE

HeBRMEBEZERBRAVBRREALAER
HEOEEBEZESEHE RMITSHZEEBERTT
BRER o

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMRELTNNEESRRREREE

Our procedures, among others, included:

B 2ERr (AR e RE :

a)

obtaining an understanding of and evaluating the design,
and determining the implementation of the Group’s key
internal controls over the contract revenue recognition
including the control over recording work done, invoicing

and cash receipts;

THEFERE  hEE BEEEHEHREERZE
ENMEZE(BREHTKIE ERRBEREZE
BE)NEBER

assessing the reasonableness of the basis and

assumptions of the estimated total contract costs;

G EORABRZEERBREETARE

comparing actual total contract costs incurred to estimated
total contract costs of contracts completed during the
year, on a sample basis, to assess the reasonableness of

management’s estimation;

HELRFADERANMEE ZER
KGR A MR AR U EREE 2 A7

BRI B

ehAaE:

2024 ANNUAL REPORT 43

55



56

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter (continued)

BRELBIE(E)

Revenue recognition (continued)

W25 SR ()

Revenue from provision of system integration
and development services of approximately
RM8,802,000 is recognised over time by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation using input
method as the Group’s performance does not create
an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

RERXGBAMBAERGSARBERRE 2 KEHFE
8,802,000 BITIHEBENEET 2 ERER + M
BAZRERERER  DAEN EEENBEOTAILR
ELEY BEEEEERAZHNEE - H BE5EAR
BT AW EE S B B AR FRIA

We have identified the above matter as a key audit
matter because the amount involved is significant
and management used significant judgements and
estimations to determine the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation
at the reporting date.

BMERA LAEZBEERTEEREE  REARS R
SHEKRN BEEER®RSE AHEREAHE K&
BETTeRTHBEBRNEETZERIER

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

BREEBXSHEE)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter (continued)

BEMREXKFUNTEEEEEREREE(E)

performing arithmetical check on the schedule of the
calculation of the progress towards complete satisfaction
of the relevant performance obligation under input method,
on a sample basis, based on the schedule prepared by
the management with information including contract sum,
estimated total contract costs and contract costs incurred
(the “Schedule”); and

REEEENZZAORE B OKABEERED
RAMBEZERER((EER]) HETBEOLEE
SREETHEEZERSE R

verifying key terms in contracts (including contract sum,
deliverables timetable and milestones), estimated total
contract costs and contract costs incurred as set out in
the Schedule, on a sample basis, to the respective signed
contracts, approved cost budgets and relevant supporting

documents of the contract costs incurred respectively.

DHMEREEERMBCAOEREGER(BHEANE
BOEEREREER) B ORNEENE K
AEBECEZAN  KBURRANBERBESHKAR
XX



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Key audit matter (continued)

HMREREER(E)

BESRUSBEZAREEER ([RAEEER]) ZEREE

Refer to significant accounting policy and critical
accounting estimates and judgements in Note 2 and
the disclosures of trade receivables in Note 16 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BB F2z T2 HRIARBR S E KA
NRBEMEI6Z5E M BEHRERE ZRBFKARE -

At 30 November 2024, the carrying amount, net of
loss allowance, of trade receivables amounted to
approximately RM4,007,000, represent 40.5% of the total

assets of the Group.

R-ZE-_MFE+—A=+H " BHEKFBZEEF
B (% EERE) A A E 4,007,000 & B£EH
BEREZ40.5% °

Management performed credit evaluations for the Group’s
customers and assessed ECL of trade receivables. These
assessments were focused on the customers’ settlement
record and their current repayment ability, and also
adjusted for forward-looking factors and took into account
information specific to respective customers as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the

customers operated.

EREEY BEREZEPETERMNME LFIEES
UK ENEREERE ZETHIERREFPH
BERBREER 2 BHE N UHHARIEREE
THEBERERSBAEFZHERRARERPEEM
ENREREBRACES -

We have identified the above matter as a key audit
matter due to the significant amounts involved
and the significant judgements were made by
the management in determining the ECL on trade
receivables.

BHMEBA LAEBERTEEREER  RARS R

SHEXN AEEEGERERSREFENEREER
JE5 18 B 1 h B K B -

REELREE @)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter (continued)
BARERTFONMEEEREBEEREE(F)

Loss allowance for expected credit losses (“ECL”) on trade receivables

Our procedures, among others, included:

B2 (AR eiE) RE :

a)

obtaining management’s assessment of ECL on trade
receivables and assessed the reasonableness of the key

underlying information referenced by the management; and

ESEREHESRKFTANRREEBRE MG I
AAEEEESI ANBREREE 2EEE &

assessing management’s judgement over the ECL
and creditworthiness of the customers by assessing,
on a sample basis, the available information, such as
background information of the customers, concentration
risk of customers, the Group’s actual loss experience (our
examination of the customers’ payment records during the
current year and subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, as well as the historical collection records), and the

forward-looking factors specific to the customers.

Liﬁi?éﬂ AEAERECEN  WEFPERAEN BEFB
ERELE FEPNETRR . EXENEREBERLK
ﬁ(&ﬁ&$¢ﬁ7&$&%ﬁﬂ3ﬁé AR S B M AT 8 A
BEPIZEEGES) RHHEPHAEERRS  F{H
BEEEHENEEERREPEENHE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the 2024
annual report of the Company, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by the IASB, and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion

on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

RBMHBERGREMBRRZEM

BHNERRERAMBERABBREL AMFHE
MR ERMER c EABRBRAIGEE
BRE THAHIEMER ZRBEIHRS
BPREBEZBZHEGHTBILERER BET
EHMAEEMAE - HATHEREZAS
BEMEMALTBESAERE -

EERERSERE  BETHEREBELER
AEAET CERARBRARRTECERE
AR o SERRBRA T R ERFF S EE ARSI B - A
I T8 A R SR SR RO (B sl [ AREE JR) R BE R
ERBZEFAMBRRMEL ZRERE -
BRAFERRAANBEREERX o

REFBBRFEAETERR  HMASERZ
BREDPEAERHELRFEREREE - &

fime

o B MR A B R BRAF KO8 BR T 8 B
MBRIFAERNERR A Z AR -
AATHMTREZERR ZEZRER
ERASRECERBEELSEMER
ZER  HREGFA RS RBER  BE -
EREER ERMRLEEANIERE
FUt R BN AR RFFMER Z EAH
ARz BB SN AREERANBRT
BYE -

SRRl

s THERZHEBIAIEE  URFTE
BEZERREFELNFEAENY BEXEZ

NERE IR 2 RRRE B KRB R -
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves

fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for

our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our

independence, and where applicable, related actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Forvis Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 28 February 2025

The engagement director on the audit resulting in
this independent auditor’s report is:

Fong Chin Lung

Practising Certificate number: P07321

BREMBERGREMBHRRZEE@

REBEEARERBIERT  HPRERHL
ERHAHRASAVBERRZERRRER
AmEKEREZEE RIS EXBERE
PR EEIR - RIEEDI SR GIZE I RRE
BREEH SEGEFRZBERT  HAEH
ERBEAREEMERZBEAKRSEERE
BRBZATEFRAZNERAMTEERS T RE
A5 BRI °

EEBESHMESRERAT
HEDF AT
B —E-_RAF-_A=-+NH

BELXAXRBIREMBREZ
EEEREEHEEAR

TR

MEBERT - P07321
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REBRERkHEMEEWER

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

2024 2023
—E-mEF —E-=
Notes RM’000 RM'000
e B Fr S FT
Revenue Ik 5 4 14,240 12,168
Cost of services and materials sold  BR# & 2 & #1 £l A 2 (10,137) (9,532)
Gross profit EF 4,103 2,636
Other income Hapg A ] 122 138
Reversal of (Provision for) B S RWFIAZ BE
impairment loss on trade E R A (BE)
receivables 28 107 (35)
Administrative expenses TR X (5,407) (8,085)
Finance costs B R AR 6 (73) (84)
Loss before income tax MRFTEHATEE 6 (1,148) (5,430)
Income tax expenses Fri5HiF X 9 - =
Loss for the year FEEE (1,148) (5,430)
Other comprehensive (expenses) Hth 2 (%) W
income
Item that will not be reclassified to T EEH 7 EEEwm o HE
profit or loss
Exchange difference on translation #EAQNRHIEREZ2HEE 2
of the Company’s financial EHER
statements to presentation
currency (142) 204
Item that may be reclassified HEneE HEE B o HE
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange difference on translation BEGINHB AR ZEH =2
of foreign subsidiaries 60 (270)
Other comprehensive expenses FEHM2HEBAX
for the year (82) (66)
Total comprehensive expenses FEXEARX
for the year (1,230) (5,496)
Loss per share, basic and SRER(EXREHE)
diluted (RM cents) (B®5) 10 (0.29) (1.39)

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
a BRI R

At 30 November 2024 R —Z ¥ +—HA=+H

2023
TERT =4z
Notes RM’000 RM’'000
Kt BT R F T

Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEE - BB RRE 12 1,327 1,411
Right-of-use assets EREEE 13 458 345
Intangible assets EmEEE 14 8 160
1,793 1,916

Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E bR EIE 16 4,186 5,378
Contract assets ABHEE 17 667 423
Restricted bank balances SR HIERTT 4 84 18 156 384
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRIRE S 19 3,084 3,210
8,093 9,395
Current liabilities REBAE

Trade and other payables B 5 REAMERNKIA 20 3,622 4,173
Contract liabilities aHARE 17 1,547 1,064
Income tax payables FE A P 32 469 650
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 21 749 790
Lease liabilities HEBE 13 266 204
6,653 6,881
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,440 2,514
Total assets less current liabilities @& ERTE & & 3,233 4,430

Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBRAE 22 28 33
Lease liabilities HEBE 13 640 602
668 635
NET ASSETS HEFE 2,565 3,795
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
| B RO R

At 30 November 2024 R—Z ¥ +—HA=+H

2023
—T-=fF
Notes RM’000 RM’000
=3 HMFT f5 B F T
Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital A& 7N 23 2,067 2,067
Reserves f# 498 1,728
TOTAL EQUITY A 2,565 3,795
These consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 143 were F62E E143E FTEMGMAMBERRNR S _1A5 =
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 A+ N\NBEESei A REETE  WH T
February 2025 and signed on its behalf by EEREREE
Chong Yee Ping Siah Jiin Shyang
EHR i 88 R
Director Director
EFE ExE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEREREHR

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

Reserves
B
Share Share Capital Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
BA R EE ERGEE 5 R ZitEE @t
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000
BEFT SEFT SEFT SEFT SEFT BB
(Note 23) ~ (Note 25(a))  (Note 25(b))  (Note 25(c))
(W#z3)  (Wios@)  (Wiosp)  (H#2s(c)
At 1 December 2022 WZE-_—F+-f—H 2,067 28,732 4,952 (98) (26,362) 9,291
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - (5,430) (5,430)
Other comprehensive income Hit2EkE (%)
(expenses):
ltem that will not be reclassified to RTBEN A HZEn B
profit or loss
Exchange difference on translation of BERRRBBRREZSE
the Company's financial statements to BeEAZR
presentation currency - - - 204 - 204
ltem that may be reclassified REJHEN 7 B2 R
subsequently to profit or loss EH
Exchange difference on translation of AEIHERRZ
foreign subsidiaries EHZER - - - (270) - (270)
Total comprehensive expenses for FEREARX
the year - - - (66) (5,430) (5,496)
At 30 November 2023 RZFZ=%+-A=1H 2,067 28,732 4,952 (164) (31,792) 3,79
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

Reserves
ik
Share Share Capital Exchange  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses
B i@ ENE E R AR
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000
FEFT FEFT FEFT FEFT FEFT V-3 &0
(Note 23)  (Note 25(a)) ~ (Note 25(b))  (Note 25(c))
(Wit23)  (Witos@)  (Witosb)  (H#25(c)
At 1 December 2023 W-B-=%+-A-A 2,067 28,732 4,952 (164) (31,792) 3,795
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - (1,148) (1,148)
Other comprehensive (expenses) Hip2m (FX) W
income:
Item that will not be reclassified to profit BT EE#H # B2 En 2 BH
or loss
Exchange difference on translation of RERRAHBRRZZS
the Company's financial statements to EEIERER
presentation currency - - - (142) - (142)
ltem that may be reclassified BRAEEN P EE R
subsequently to profit or loss EH
Exchange difference on translation of REBHNIBAR 2
foreign subsidiaries ERzR - - - 60 - 60
Total comprehensive expenses for FEXEARX
the year - - - (82) (1,148) (1,230)
At 30 November 2024 K-2-mEt+-A=+A 2,067 28,732 4,952 (246) (32,940) 2,565

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T & +— A=+ HILFE

2023
EITE
Notes RM’000 RM’'000
B et B¥FT 5 FT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES mEEE
Loss before income tax BRETIS R AT A 1B (1,148) (5,430)
Adjustments for: BTHIEE EH T -
Amortisation i 152 2,019
Depreciation e 540 612
(Reversal of) Provision for impairment & 5 & Y 738 2 SRE B 18
losses on trade receivables (8[mE) BB (107) 35
Exchange difference EHER (82) (66)
Interest income 2 A (57) (78)
Interest expenses FERAEZ 73 84
Gain on disposal of property, plant HeEYE  HERERE
and equipment U zs (29) -
Write-off of property, plant and MsE 2 - B RBE
equipment - 35
Cash flows used in operations before K& E &S BT 2 & E
movements in working capital FTAZRERE (658) (2,789)
Change in working capital: KEEREE
Trade and other receivables E 5 K& H b W GRIE 1,265 (2,308)
Contract assets and liabilities AHNAERAEE 239 921
Restricted bank balances ZPRHIERTT 4 84 228 265
Trade and other payables B 5 RE AR FRIE (551) 1,299
Cash generated from (used in) EEMBFAZER:
operations 523 (2,612)
Income tax paid EETER (186) (244)
Net cash from (used in) operating KETBREB (A 2EE
activities FE 337 (2,856)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREETH
Purchases of property, plant and BEYE BBRREZE
equipment (76) (130)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HeEYE  HELDELZ
plant and equipment T8 =ig 31 -
Additions to intangible assets REEBWEE - (134)
Interest received 2UFIE 57 78
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AEBRITRER

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T —NF+— A=+ HILFE

2024 2023
—E_UE —E-=
Notes RM’000 RM’000
ke B¥FT 5 F T
Net cash from (used in) investing REFZHME (FTA) 2
activities REFE 12 (186)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mMEEE
Repayment of interest-bearing BETEEE
borrowings 26(b) (41) (39)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHREARE 26(b) (361) (269)
Interest paid B FE (73) (84)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEE A 2B S EHE (475) (392)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBEEEBYZ
equivalents WD FE (126) (3,434)
Cash and cash equivalents at the BREMPIZRER
beginning of the reporting period REEEY 3,210 6,644
Cash and cash equivalents BEHRZEERRESE
at the end of the reporting period, E# ° UBITHEHR
represented by bank balances and BR&Z27|
cash 3,084 3,210

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



CORPORATE INFORMATION

Mindtell Technology Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands on 27 February 2018. The Company’s shares were
listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 22 October 2018. The address of
the Company'’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is
Room 1910, 19/F, C C Wu Building, 302-308 Hennessy Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The Group’s headquarter is situated
at B-7-7, Sky Park @ One City, Jalan USJ 25/1, 47650 Subang

Jaya, Selangor, Malaysia.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the provision of system integration
and development services, IT outsourcing services and

maintenance and consultancy services.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual IFRS
Accounting Standards, IAS Standards and IFRIC Interpretations
issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”) and all amounts have been rounded

to the nearest thousand (“RM’000”), unless otherwise indicated.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ - —NF+— A=+ HILFE

REER

Mindtell Technology Limited ([ZAx 2
ADR-_E—NF-_A=-++tAHEH
ERETMKIAEREERDF - K
RARPR_E—NF+AZ+ZHE
EEBMARSMARRDA ([BZH])
GEM LT o R R E M 3R 52 2 it &
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands - E & B X E & ¥ i
B R BB E T B JE 55 8 302-3085% & K
191910 © AN &K B 2 48 #f A7 R
B-7-7, Sky Park @ One City, Jalan USJ
25/1, 47650 Subang Jaya, Selangor,
Malaysia °

ARAZEBEBRREERAT - K
AREREMBLR (BB IEAER])
TERERHEAREANFAERE &
FARHEOMNAIRTS - AR A& KB BRTS -

TREHEE
AREH

HEREMBRRERBRBHEK STE
AREg ((BEREFENZEE]) B
BB HREEA G ER  EAR
REtEAZESRMZ A ERER
R BREER - BEREFERRE
R BREREREeRBENRERE
BARGIIZEBERERE - WEHRA
BRI BB RXAGEMEZ L
AI(TGEMETRA]) ZERWERE °

HAEMBHRERAFTE(NTE] 27 - &
SEHRAN MESEDREERAT
i ([F¥®FTxTl -

2024 ANNUAL REPORT 43

69



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T —NF+— A=+ HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Statement of compliance (continued)

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the basis consistent with accounting policies adopted in
2023 consolidated financial statements except for the adoption
of the new/revised IFRS Accounting Standards that are relevant

to the Group and effective from the current year.

Adoption of new/revised IFRS Accounting Standards

The Group has applied, for the first time, the following new/

revised IFRS Accounting Standards that are relevant to the

Group:

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

Amendments to IAS 1: Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments require companies to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their significant

accounting policies.

The amendments have no effect on the measurement,
recognition or presentation of any items in the consolidated
financial statements. Management has reviewed the disclosure
of accounting policy information and considered it is consistent

with the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 8: Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify how companies should distinguish
changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting

estimates.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.

70 MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Adoption of new/revised IFRS Accounting Standards

(continued)

Amendments to IAS 12: Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of IAS 12 so that it no
longer applies to transactions that, on recognition, give rise to

equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant

impact on the consolidated financial statements.
Going concern

The Group recognised a consolidated loss before tax of
approximately RM1,148,000 during the year ended 30
November 2024. In addition, at 30 November 2024, the Group’s
total trade and other payables and interest-bearing borrowings
amounted to approximately RM4,371,000, which are classified
as current liabilities and are due for repayment within the next
twelve months after 30 November 2024. At 30 November 2024,
the Group had bank balances and cash of approximately
RM3,084,000. Based on management’s cash flow forecast for
the next twelve months, the Group will maintain sufficient cash
and cash equivalents through internally generated cash flows
to finance their activities and pay their debts as and when they
fall due. In addition, substantial shareholders have confirmed
that they will provide financial support to the Group to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due, if required. Accordingly,
management has assessed that the Group, with the financial
support from the substantial shareholders, will have sufficient
financial resources to enable the Group to meet its cash
flow requirements in the next twelve months from end of the
reporting period. The directors of the Company are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare these consolidated financial

statements on going concern basis.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these

consolidated financial statements is historical cost.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as that of the Company using consistent

accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, incomes and expenses
and profits and losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control
and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control

ceases.

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and within
equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The non-controlling interests in the acquiree, that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation,
are measured initially either at fair value or at the present
ownership instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice
of measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value, unless another measurement basis is

required by IFRS Accounting Standards.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RR N

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ - —NF+— A=+ HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FTESBE®E)
Basis of consolidation (continued) ZEEEE)
Allocation of total comprehensive income 7B 2 E AW

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-controlling
interest even if this results in the non-controlling interest having

a deficit balance.
Changes in ownership interest

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest determined at the date
when control is lost and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests at the date when control is lost. The
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the parent had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Any investment
retained in the former subsidiary and any amounts owed by or
to the former subsidiary are accounted for as a financial asset,
associate, joint venture or others as appropriate from the date

when control is lost.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or

more of the elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position as set out in
Note 24 to the consolidated financial statements, investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment loss, if
any. The carrying amount of the investment is reduced to
its recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of the subsidiary
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and/or receivable.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Repairs and maintenance are charged to profit

or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ - —NF+— A=+ HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less accumulated
impairment losses of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives as set out below from the date on which
they are available for use and after taking into account their
estimated residual values, using the straight-line method.
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a

reasonable basis and depreciated separately:

Buildings 50 years
Leasehold improvements 10 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 10 years
Computer equipment 2.5 -3 years
Motor vehicle 5 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in

which the item is derecognised.
Intangible assets
Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development activities, which involve the application
of research findings to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
are capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
to complete the development. The expenditure capitalised
includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Other development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss as an expense as incurred. When
the asset is available for use, the capitalised development
costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 18
months. For intangible assets yet to be available for use, they

are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments and on a trade date basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group’s contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain control of

the financial asset.
Classification and measurement

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at their

transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income; (iii) equity
investment measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income; or (iv) measured at FVPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RR N

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ - —NF+— A=+ HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition

depends on the Group’s business model for managing the

financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash

flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified

subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group

changes its business model for managing them, in which case

all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of

the first annual reporting period following the change in the

business model.

1)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if
it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to

collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising from
impairment, derecognition or through the amortisation

process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets at amortised cost include
trade and other receivables, restricted bank balances

and bank balances and cash.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the
liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified in

the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are direct attributable to the issue of the

financial liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting would be

insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS 9

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL”") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost and contract assets to which the impairment
requirements apply in accordance with IFRS 9. Except for
the specific treatments as detailed below, at each reporting
date, the Group measures a loss allowance for a financial
asset at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit
risk on that financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an

amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RR N

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ - —NF+— A=+ HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 2. FTESHERE®R

Financial instruments (continued) SETIA#E)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS 9 RIBZE B ERBIFFAENE
(continued) MEERERAEMBEE (&)
Measurement of ECL BHIEEERTE

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e. the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the

financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due to
an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the entity

expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the

reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped based on the following one or more

shared credit risk characteristics:

BHEEBRRRNER T ARRAFEY
AR NEEEERMGT (AWBAIME
BREemRcBHE) -

HRERMEEMS  EEEBEAREAN
BT -—RERZANRETEHER
BHRIIz2REREZHMZ ZRBRE -

EEFENAHEESEERERTA
LEBFERANRAARERNEHBE
ETEBEEEBR  m12@A2EHE
ERBEERHN®RE R HR12EA R
RENEMRASEL 2 BAFESR
HEEBERN -0 -
ERHMEEERREREALGE R
TRARAT-—HAZBEAREERRE
RETOM

(i) past due information (i) BEHAE R
(ii) nature of instrument (i) TAMNHEHE

(iii) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors
(vi) external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and loss since
initial recognition. The resulting changes in the loss allowance
are recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the

financial instrument.

(i) EHZRMEE

(iv) BEHAZTE

(v) BEHBAZHECE
(vi) MEEERRFFR

FEBANERE B BEFTE - IR
BEMIASMEREREY EEER K
BEED - FEL2 FARELDIE
2 PO 3R A M SS9 3 AR A
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS 9

(continued)
Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that the Group may not receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the financial

instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(i information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);

or

(ii) there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging

default criterion is more appropriate.
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort. In particular, the following information is taken into

account in the assessment:
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS 9

(continued)
Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or

interest on the due dates;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if

available);

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor; and

o actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s

ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due, except
for the receivables for which the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that previous
non-payments were an administrative oversight, instead of
resulting from financial difficulty of the borrower, or that there
is no correlation between significant increases in the risk of a
default occurring and financial assets on which payments are

more than 30 days past due.
Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its

contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash

flow obligations.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS 9

(continued)
Low credit risk (continued)

Other receivables, restricted bank balances and bank balances

and cash are determined to have low credit risk.
Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables and contract assets, without a significant
financing component or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date and
has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors

specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data about

the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise

consider.

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A B RR N

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ - —NF+— A=+ HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items under IFRS 9

(continued)
Credit-impaired financial asset (continued)

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.

(f) the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a

deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual cash
flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The
Group has a policy of writing off the gross carrying amount
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off could
still be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking into account
legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent recovery is

recognised in profit or loss.
Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is

as follows:

(i) system integration and development services
(ii) IT outsourcing services

(iii) maintenance and consultancy services
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)
Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods or
services promised in a contract with a customer and identifies
as a performance obligation each promise to transfer to the

customer either:

(a) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)

that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern

of transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if

both of the following criteria are met:

(a) the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or

service is capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the

contract).
Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred

when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)
Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time and,
therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and recognises

revenue over time, if one of the following criteria is met:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as

the Group performs;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example, work in progress) that the customer

controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the Group
satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the promised asset. In determining
when the transfer of control occurs, the Group considers the
concept of control and such indicators as legal title, physical
possession, right to payment, significant risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset, and customer acceptance.

Revenue from system integration and development services
and consultancy services is recognised over time because
the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable

right to payment for performance completed to date.

Sales of externally acquired/purchased hardware and software
for system integration and development services is recognised
at a point in time at which the customer obtains the control of
the promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is

passed.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)
Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

IT outsourcing services income is recognised over time when

services are rendered.

Maintenance services income is recognised over time on a

straight-line basis over the life of the related agreements.

For revenue recognised over time under IFRS 15, provided
the outcome of the performance obligation can be reasonably
measured, the Group applies the input method (i.e. based
on the proportion of the actual inputs deployed to date as
compared to the estimated total inputs) to measure the
progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation because there is a direct relationship between the
Group’s inputs and the transfer of control of goods or services
to the customers and reliable information is available to the
Group to apply the method. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the costs incurred until such time that
it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance

obligation.
Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing component
(i.e. the customer or the Group is provided with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer), in determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised consideration for the effects of the
time value of money. The effect of the significant financing
component is recognised as an interest income or interest
expense separately from revenue from contracts with

customers in profit or loss.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED

2.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RN Ry R e

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T —NF+— A=+ HILFE

FTESIBER(#)
WS ()

BB BB G EREISHEITIEZEFE
Az (&)

Y 25 HEAR 2 BF BT (48)

B AR BN IR U AR 12 AR 75 5 B
AR o

#AE RIS AR 3% 2 FHI IR E
SRR R -

AR % B R B 745 R 45 2 B 55 1 55% BB s
BRAKRAEME  WAREFERNERE
ZER AKBRERB AL (BRES
ZEBBRANEGEFRKRAZLS)E
TERTRNEEZERER  RER
AEE 2w AN BEBE IR 2 12
BTEFPZRAEEBERERAEINEER
HAEERBZIE - BRI NEE(E
APTEER A RRERKE  BEHA
REFEBROWAEEZER -

X5E1E  EXBEZHS

HWEHNEREARESY (BREFE
EEMBIREAEPHARETHKEKR
M) AEBERBEERSERERS
ERRECYEMNHBEARZIRER
HM-BEABEROZFERRBTFA
M2 WBmD AR BETERSFEKA
HH B



PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

(continued)
Transaction price: significant financing components (continued)

The Group determines the interest rate that is commensurate
with the rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and its customer at contract
inception by reference to, where appropriate, the interest rate
implicit in the contract (i.e. the interest rate that discounts the
cash selling price of the goods or services to the amount paid
in advance or arrears), the prevailing market interest rates, the
Group’s borrowing rates and other relevant creditworthiness

information of the customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in paragraph 63
of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the consideration for the effect
of the significant financing component if the period of financing

is one year or less.
Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using
the effective interest method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of

credit-impaired financial assets.
Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services to a
customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, the contract is presented as a contract asset,
excluding any amounts presented as a receivable. Conversely,
if a customer pays consideration, or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the
Group transfers a good or service to the customer, the contract
is presented as a contract liability when the payment is made
or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable
is the Group’s right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that

consideration is due.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities (continued)

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts, either
a net contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
Contract assets and contract liabilities of unrelated contracts

are not presented on a net basis.

In accordance with the standard payment schedules of the
Group, payments are normally not due or received from
the customer until the services are completed or when the
goods are delivered. However, for such transactions, revenue
is recognised over time and therefore, a contract asset is
recognised until it becomes a receivable or payments are
received. In some situation, the Group received from the
customer the whole or some of the contractual payments
before the services are completed or when the goods are
delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition for such
transactions). The Group recognises a contract liability until it
is recognised as revenue. During that period, any significant
financing components, if applicable, will be included in the
contract asset and recognised as interest income, or included
in the contract liability and will be expensed as accrued unless

the interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.
Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RM because the Group’s transactions are
mainly conducted in RM, which is the functional currency
of the operating subsidiaries of the Group in Malaysia. The

Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”").

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised

in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B SRR MY R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ - —NF+— A=+ HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency translation (continued)

The results and financial position of all the group entities that
have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency (“foreign operations”) are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented, are translated at the closing rate at

the end of the reporting period.

o income and expenses for each statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at

average exchange rate.

. all resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised as a

separate component of equity.

o on the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation and a disposal involving the loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to the foreign operation that is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the separate component of equity is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss on disposal

is recognised.

o on the partial disposal of the Group’s interest in a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation which
does not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiary, the proportionate share of the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in the
separate component of equity is re-attributed to the
non-controlling interests in that foreign operation and

are not reclassified to profit or loss; and

. on all other partial disposals, the proportionate share
of the cumulative amount of exchange differences
recognised in the separate component of equity is

reclassified to profit or loss.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess whether
there is any indication that its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets and the Company’s
investment in a subsidiary may be impaired or impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may be reduced.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In addition, the Group
tests its intangible assets that are yet to be available for use
for impairment by estimating their recoverable amount on an
annual basis or whenever there is an indication that those
assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of intangible assets not yet available for
use is estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest
group of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit (“CGU”")).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an

expense in profit or loss immediately.

A reversal of impairment loss is limited to the carrying amount
of the asset or cash-generating unit that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
periods. Reversal of impairment loss is recognised as an

income in profit or loss immediately.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.
Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other
borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in

which they are incurred.
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is recognised as a
deduction from the carrying amount of the relevant asset and
is released to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the

relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease
at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if
the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified

asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a

single lease component.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the

basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified

components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability

at the commencement date of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which

comprises:

(a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any leases payments made at or before the

commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;
(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and
(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are

incurred to produce inventories.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease transfers
ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of
the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects
that the Group will exercise a purchase option — in which case
depreciation is provided over the estimated useful life of the

underlying asset) as follows:

Office premises Over the term of lease

Motor vehicles 5 years

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement

date of the contract.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise the following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the

commencement date:

(a) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a

rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual value

guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payment of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable, the

incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability and by
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments

made.

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from a
change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether the

Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original discount
rate when there is a change in the residual value guarantee,
the in-substance fixed lease payments or the future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate (other
than floating interest rate). In case of a change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in floating interest rates, the
Group remeasures the lease liability using a revised discount

rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to
zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the
lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining amount of

the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(a) the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;

and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of

the particular contract.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate

lease, at the effective date of the lease modification:

(a) the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative standalone price as

described above.

(b) the Group determines the lease term of the modified

contract.

(c) the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount

rate over the revised lease term.

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use assets to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease

in profit or loss.

(e) for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making a

corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the period in which the

associated services are rendered by employees.
Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred. The assets of the scheme are held separately

from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the period as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arising from initial recognition of
goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss is not

recognised.

The deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and

credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investment in subsidiaries, except where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will net reverse

in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR MY R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ - —NF+— A=+ HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group,

that is defined as:

(@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(M)

(it)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of the holding company of the
Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

V)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each holding
company, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RN Ry R e

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T —NF+— A=+ HILFE

2.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
holding company of the entity).

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the holding
company of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the purpose of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individual material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and
judgements are made by the management in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements. They affect the
application of the Group’s accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and
disclosures made. They are assessed on an on-going
basis and are based on experience and relevant factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. Where appropriate,
revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
of revision and future periods, in case the revision also affects

future periods.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follow:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets

The management determines the estimated useful lives of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets based on the experience of actual useful
lives of assets of similar nature and functions or expected
useful lives of assets, after taking into account of estimated
technology life cycle. The estimated useful lives could be
different as a result of technical innovations which could affect
the related depreciation and amortisation charges included in

profit or loss.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets

The management determines whether the Group’s property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible
assets are impaired when an indication of impairment exists
or when annual impairment testing is required. This requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount of the property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets,
which is equal to the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
or the value in use. Estimating the value in use requires the
management to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those

cash flows. Any impairment will be charged to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RN Ry R e

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T —NF+— A=+ HILFE

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Critical accounting estimates and judgements (continued)
Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit
in the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine the

incremental borrowing rate.
Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance for
trade receivables and contract assets by using various inputs
and assumptions including risk of a default and expected loss
rate. The estimation involves high degree of uncertainty which
is based on the Group’s historical information, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
amount of trade receivables and contract assets. Details of the
key assumption and inputs used in estimating ECL are set out

in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.
Revenue recognition

The Group recognised revenue from system integration and
development services and consultancy services over time
by reference to the progress of satisfaction of performance
obligations of each project at the reporting date. The progress
is determined based on actual inputs, such as staff costs,
deployed on each project and the respective input costs
comparing to the estimated total service costs of each project
by tracing to the contracts signed with respective customers.
The computation of the progress and estimation of total service
costs for each project require the use of judgement and

estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR MY R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ - —NF+— A=+ HILFE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Future changes in IFRS Accounting Standards

At the date of approving these consolidated financial

statements, the IASB has issued the following new/revised IFRS

Accounting Standards that are not yet effective for the current

year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 16
Amendments to IFRS 21
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7
Annual Improvements to IFRS

Accounting Standards
Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7
IFRS 18

IFRS 19

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28

2024

2025

2026

2027

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current '
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants '

Supplier Finance Arrangements '

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback '

Lack of Exchangeabilty?

Amendments to the Classification and
Measurement of Financial Instruments *

Volume 11°

Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent
Electricity °

Presentation and Disclosure in Financial
Statements *

Subsidiaries without Public Accountability:
Disclosures *

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

The effective date to be determined

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these new/

revised IFRS Accounting Standards in future periods will have

any material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RN Ry R e

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T —NF+— A=+ HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being identified as the chief operating decision makers

(the “CODM”"), for the purposes of resource allocation and

3.

2 EHEFR

MARBMITES (BIRENREEE
BARE(Z2RERKE])) 2EHRZ
AR BRI ELFHEOMREAM

assessment of segment performance focuses on types of T EBRERNHRBEZYRIRE
goods delivered or services provided. No operating segments ZHEA o iﬁ($¢ B 7] 2 5 JhEF -
identified by the CODM have been aggregated in arriving at WEGAEETEEERAREMSNZEE
the reportable segments of the Group. D o

Specifically, the Group’s reportable and operating segments BEREmME  AEBZII2/RAEED I
are: =

(i) system integration and development services; (i) ARBERFAZERS

(i) IT outsourcing services; and (i) BMBHERINIRT &

(iii) maintenance and consultancy services. (iii) “HE RER R -

Segment revenue and results DK EREE

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the KESE 7 @R B A P BHRER M

same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 2

to the consolidated financial statements.

Segment revenue represents revenue derived from the system
integration and development services, IT outsourcing services

and maintenance and consultancy services.

Segment results represent the gross profit reported by each

segment without allocation of other income, administrative

HZ AREZE qu R—He

DESME IR R B R E A KRR -
BRI BR 5 DA B 418 B B ) AR 7%
G2 Wz -

DHEBEESOBCEREN ML
ADBZEMBA - FTTHRAX - ®EK

N

expenses, finance costs, impairment loss on trade receivables N -BHRWHRIBEREBE RS
and income tax expenses. This is the measure reported to the Yo REBRIELKRBEFTHEMS - D
CODM of the Group for the purposes of resource allocation MAEBZ ETELERREZRZ L

and performance assessment.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating HRAEBRKEEDHBE D ZEERE
segments is presented as it is not regularly provided to the BEUVEFHRETFTEEEERREET
CODM for review. EH BRMUEZ2[/RES -

In addition, the Group’s place of domicile is Malaysia, where

the central management and control is located.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 3. PEER (&)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DERBEREE (E)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the REBEE-_Z-_NEFR_ZT-_=F+—A#
reportable segments for the years ended 30 November 2024 =THLEFE -BAZBFHrHAMEEE
and 2023 is as follows: BARARERBZOMERDT
System
integration Maintenance
and IT and
development outsourcing consultancy
services services services
ABEEBER - GiIENE5 HBER
BB AR5 ShH R 7% S R A
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
YT eI -7 8 -7 8
Year ended 30 November 2024 BE-E-ME+-A
=tHLEE
Revenue from external customers and REMPEP 2 ha@m &
reportable segment revenue BEX V-0l 6 12,946 187 1,107 14,240
Reportable segment results AERDDEE 3,105 134 864 4,103
Other information: EMEH -
Amortisation B 152 - - 152
Year ended 30 November 2023 BE-_T-_=%+—FA
=tHLEFE
Revenue from external customers and REINBEP 2 Wzt &
reportable segment revenue RGeS 11,315 563 290 12,168
Reportable segment results AE/MHHEE 1,980 366 290 2,636
Other information: EMEH
Amortisation i 2,019 = = 2,019
Addition of intangible assets RERVEE 134 = 4 134
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B S R R Y R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers;
and (ii) the Group’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and intangible assets (the “Specified Non-current
Assets”). The geographical location of revenue is based on the
location of external customers. The geographical location of the
Specified Non-current Assets is based on the physical location
of the assets (in the case of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, the location of operation to which they
are located, in the case of intangible assets, the location of

operations).

(a) Revenue from external customers

DEER (&)
i B & R

TRENBBA)AEBKBIHEEF Z
W RINAKEBZYE HERR
B ERAREENREVEE ((FEF
MBEE) ZHBUEZ AR - a2
WM EDRBINBEEZMEME °
HEFRDEECMBUENRBEE
ZERMUE (MBYXE  #ERKREN
REREEE AIHEMRELEZMNE
WEELEE RIRLEZMNE)ME -

(a) KENHBEFZKE

2024 2023
—E_ME —EF-=

RM’000 RM'000

BHTT FEETFT

Indonesia ENfE - 105
Malaysia P itk 14,240 12,063
14,240 12,168

(b) Specified Non-current Assets

At 30 November 2024 and 2023, all the Specified

Non-current Assets are located in Malaysia.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers individually contributing 10% or
more of the total revenue of the Group for the years ended 30
November 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

Customer A EFEA

Customer B ZFB

(b)) HEHFBEE
RZE-_NER T -_=F+—
A=+H FERTIHERBDEE
LA B R -

FBETXEEFZ2EH

REMEBEBAEBHBEE_ZS-_NFR

—E-=F+—-A=tHILEEZHK

=10% A EZ2BREZWEIT ¢

2024 2023
—E-mF —ET-=F

RM’000 RM’000
B¥Fr EEFT
5,371 5,660
Note

4,142 Kz

Note:  The customer individually did not contribute 10% or more of the
total revenue of the Group for the relevant year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

REVENUE 4. I 25
2024 2023
—E-MEF TEET =
RM’000 RM’'000
B¥TFr E8¥FT
Revenue from contracts with customers B B B 75 S 5 ZE RSB 155 T4 2
within IFRS 15 B &KW
System integration and development RGBS RABRE
services:
Services provided FFr 12 44 AR %5 8,802 10,120
Sales of externally acquired/purchased  $5&SMNERUREE BB B 2~ 18 1+
hardware and software EEEs 4,144 1,195
12,946 11,315
IT outsourcing services & RSN BR 7 187 563
Maintenance and consultancy services # 15 N e [ R % 1,107 290
14,240 12,168
Timing of revenue recognition: Wz TR 2 I BT 14 -
At a point in time KR 4,144 1,195
Over time & B ] 10,096 10,973
14,240 12,168
OTHER INCOME 5. Hfttlgk A
2024 2023
—TME —EF-=
RM’000 RM’'000
BT HFT
Government grant B B 24 51
Interest income FMEHA 57 78
Gain on disposal of property, plant and EEWE - HBEREBE
equipment 2 W 29 =
Others EAh 12 9
122 138
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

6. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

This is stated after charging:

BRETEHAIE R
BRATE B ATB R EMER TR IR;E

2024 2023
—E_ME —T-=F
RM’000 RM’000
B¥TFr 5 F T
Finance costs ELE-§2%N
Interest expenses on interest-bearing FFEEEZFERX
borrowings 31 38
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEBEZREER 42 46
73 84
Staff costs and related expenses EINAREERX (BEES
(including directors’ remuneration) )
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in =~ ¥4 ~ 28t R £t & WEF
kind 7,234 7,840
Contributions to defined contribution plans & %8 it Z 51 &) 2 it 3% 748 769
7,982 8,609
Represented by: e -
Staff costs for administrative and sales staff 1T R #E 8 T~ 8 T 1,076 1,587
Staff costs for IT staff included in BAEHREIMBEIRA - 5t A
administrative expenses THFAX 1,298 1,598
Staff costs allocated to “Cost of services” BHEZE[REHA] 28 TR 5,608 5,290
Staff costs charged to profit or loss FPABERZBEIRA 7,982 8,475
Staff costs capitalised as “Intangible assets’ & & At A [ EFEE | 2 8 THK
7K - 134
7,982 8,609
Other items HimAE
Amortisation of intangible assets, included & 24 E# # (Gt AT )
in administrative expenses 152 2,019
Auditor’s remuneration 1% A 37 B 474 561
Cost of materials sold BEE MR A 3,731 1,135
Depreciation of property, plant and Y KBEREETE
equipment 158 264
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERREEERE 382 348
Exchange loss, net HNIE 518 F 5E 7 37
Write-off of property, plant and equipment #fi$5%% - #22 L& # - 35
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. EEME
In addition to the directors’ fee, certain directors of the BREZSHESIN KRB ZATEERE
Company received remuneration from the Group during the E_E_NER_ZE_=F+—A=+
years ended 30 November 2024 and 2023 for their appointment BIEFERE B ANEEUEEBY - LAE
as employees of these entities. The aggregate amounts of REEEZARLKSZERESE 2HM -
remuneration received and receivable by the directors of the REE-_ZTE_NFR-_ZE-_=F+—A8
Company during the years ended 30 November 2024 and 2023 “+HLEFER ARAREFEWREE
are set out below. WEH M @ RBBEIT o
Year ended 30 November 2024 BE_Z-_HNFE+—A=+tHLEE
Salaries,
EUTEL Contributions
and other to defined
Directors’ benefits in Discretionary contribution
fees kind bonus plans
1= 1: 1
R EH A ERE AR
ESHe BEYEH BERA Bz HR
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
V-7 894 V-1 & FEFT FETx V-7 84
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Chong Yee Ping EEREE 3 91 - 8 102
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang HRELE - - - - -
Mr. Lam Pang WIE % & - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BUHEHTEE
directors
Dato’ Yeong Kok Hee SEBEE - 68 - - 68
Mr. Siew Kin Meng REBAEE - 68 - - 68
Ms. Lau Meng Hong ZEEZ T - 68 - - 68
3 295 - 8 306
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 7. EEME )
Year ended 30 November 2023 HEZZ-_=F+—A=+HLEFE
Salaries,
allowances Contributions
and other to defined
Directors’ benefits in Discretionary contribution
fees kind bonus plans Total
£d 28
REA TEER
E=Hd BEYEN MEELD BEIPALT et
RM 000 RM000 RM'000 RM000 RM000
FEFT FEFT FEFT FEFT FEFT
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Chong Yee Ping EEREE - 179 - 8 187
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James® 2B = 116 - 4 120
Non-executive directors FHITEE
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang Bl - 87 - - 87
Mr. Lam Pang WES 4 = 87 = = 87
Independent non-executive =~ BV HHTEE
directors
Mr. Chan San Ping' BAETEL = 32 = = 32
Mr. Su Chi Wen' BRSO A - 32 - = 32
Ms. Ho Suet Man Stella® EZxt = 38 - - 38
Dato’ Yeong Kok Hee? SEBEE = 4 = = 4
Mr. Siew Kin Meng? FRIP LA = 4 = = 4
Ms. Lau Meng Hong® 2Lt = 17 = S 17
- 670 - 12 682

! Resigned on 1 May 2023

2 Appointed on 1 May 2023
Resigned on 1 June 2023
N Resigned on 9 June 2023

Appointed on 1 September 2023

During the years ended 30 November 2024 and 2023, no

emoluments were paid by the Group to any of these directors

as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as

a compensation for loss of office. All executive directors

and non-executive directors agreed to waive emoluments of
approximately RM684,000 (2023: approximately RM406,000)

during the year ended 30 November 2024.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MR AR A

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

8. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 8. FEBREHFAL

An analysis of the five highest paid individuals during the years
ended 30 November 2024 and 2023 is as follows:

RBE-F-MER-F-=F+—f
StHELFE  RER
mF -

SHALZAM

Number of individuals

2023

—T-=
Director 5= - -
Non-director JFEE 5 5
5 5

Details of the remuneration of the above highest paid

PRREHIFEEALTZHMFBLT

2024 2023
—E_ME 2=

non-director individuals are as follows:

RM’000 RM’'000
HFT BT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits in =~ ¥ & * ZEE R E M EWEF
kind 1,493 1,292
Contributions to defined contribution plans & 284tk &H 2] 2 3K 20 112
1,583 1,404

The number of these non-director individuals whose
emoluments fell within the following emoluments band is as

follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/% 7T

HEHREEALZMEN T TIIMEH
Bz N8BT

—E_ME =

During the years ended 30 November 2024 and 2023, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to any of these highest
paid non-director individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as a compensation for loss of office. None
of these highest paid non-director individuals waived or has
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 30
November 2024 and 2023.

RBE_ZT_NEFR-_FT_=F+—H
ZTBEUEFER  REBESEREA L
ERSHIEFALINHFEMN  ERE
SIREMALIMARE B2 2R - K
EREBEREE RBEE_T_OFE
TEZH+-A=THLFEAR &
BEEMLEESHFESATIRENXR
BERELAHE -
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

9.

Current tax BN HA B 18
Malaysia corporate income tax
(“Malaysia CIT”)
Under (Over) provision in prior years

DEMREHD)

Deferred tax (Note 23) EFERLIE (f12F23)

B EDEMEN ([HRAE

BEFEREBTE (BEERB)

FreBimx
2024 2023
—E-mE —ET-=
RM’000 RM'000
B¥TFr 5 FoT

(5) 10

Total income tax expenses for the year 7~ E TS5 X 4

The group entities established in the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") are exempted from income
tax. No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group had no assessable profits arising in or derived from
Hong Kong.

Malaysia CIT is calculated at 24% of the estimated assessable
profits for the year ended 30 November 2024 and 2023.
Malaysia incorporated entities with paid-up capital of RM2.5
million or less enjoy tax rate of 15% on the first RM150,000,
17% from RM150,001 to RM600,000 and remaining balance of
the estimated assessable profits at tax rate of 24% for the year
ended 30 November 2024 and 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued) 9. iR AE D)
Reconciliation of income tax expenses FrERilX 2R
2024 2023
—E-NF TEST =
RM’000 RM’000
F¥FT EFoT
Loss before income tax R P45 84 Al I 18 (1,148) (5,430)
Income tax at applicable tax rate RERABEAE 2 EH (101) (964)
Non-deductible expenses A 2 163 905
Tax-exempt revenue ER € (5) (17)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax &) F %c Bl R HE R TR 75 5 18
losses (62) -
Unrecognised tax losses RERRIEERE - 100
Under (Over) provision in prior years BAEFERETRE GBERB) 5 (10)
Others Hith - (14)
Income tax expenses FEBiAX - -
The applicable tax rate is the weighted average of rates HRAMEERNEBERELSENMEMEH
prevailing in the territories in which the Group’s entities operate N ERBANE RN ER 2 RITHREZ
against profit or loss before tax. The change in applicable tax MEFHFHR - BARRZEEHAANE
rate is caused by changes in the taxable results of the Group's EESEEBAESHBRR 2AS
subsidiaries in the respective countries in which the Group MEBAR BRI EEZEATE -
operates.
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

10. LOSS PER SHARE 10.

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following

information:

Loss for the year attributable to the owners FA{EstE &I EAR K
of the Company, used in basic and BEEBB ARRHEAA
diluted loss per share calculation B FEER

BRER
ARBEAABREERERNREEER
THRBA T BURRTE ¢

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F

RM’000 RM’000
BT HETFT
(1,148) (5,430)

Weighted average number of ordinary BEsTESREARAR
shares for basic and diluted loss per HEFBE LB NE

share calculation TRk

Number of shares
R EE

390,000,000 390,000,000

Diluted loss per share are same as the basic loss per share
as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence
during the years ended 30 November 2024 and 2023.

11. DIVIDENDS 11.

The directors of the Group did not recommend the payment
of final dividend for the year ended 30 November 2024 (2023:
Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MR AR A

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% BBERXE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Computer Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicle Total
HE #ER
BF HENXEE BOERE ERRME RE h
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000
BETT BT BETT BETT BETT GETT
Reconciliation of carrying amount - EHEHE-#Z-_F-_=&
Year ended 30 November 2023 +-B=+RItEE
At 1 December 2022 WZE-—#+-fA-A 1,167 22 100 291 - 1,580
Additions RE = 30 16 84 - 130
Depreciation bt (27) (13) 9) (215) - (264)
Written off HisH - - - (35) - (35)
At 30 November 2023 RZZE-=F
+-A=+H 1,140 39 107 125 = 1411
Reconciliation of carrying amount- EEEHE-HZ-_E-NE
Year ended 30 November 2024 +-B=+RALEE
At 1 December 2023 R-Z-=£+-f-H 1,140 39 107 125 - 1411
Additions NE - - 10 66 - 76
Depreciation e (28) (14) (10) (106) - (158)
Disposals e - - @ - - @
At 30 November 2024 R-E-_NE
+-A=+H 1,112 25 105 85 - 1,327
At 30 November 2023 RZEZ=F+-A=+AH
Cost AR 1,390 142 301 1,633 - 3,466
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (250) (103) (194) (1,508) S (2,055)
1,140 39 107 125 - 1411
At 30 November 2024 R-B-WME+-A=+H
Cost AR 1,390 142 305 1,699 236 3,772
Accumulated depreciation BitihE (278) (117) (200) (1,614) (236) (2,445)
1,112 25 105 85 - 1,327

2024 ANNUAL REPORT 4%k
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B B S R R Y R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

13. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

13. EAREEREEEE

LIABILITIES
Right-of-use assets EHEEE
Office Motor
premises vehicles Total
WAEYE "E Mgt
RM’000 RM'000 RM'000
T T E¥FT ST
Reconciliation of carrying amount - BREEHE-HE-_ZT_=F
Year ended 30 November 2023 +—A=+RHItEE
At 1 December 2022 R-ZE-_—_F+-A—H 33 560 593
Addition NE 100 = 100
Depreciation 55 (66) (282) (348)
At 30 November 2023 RZE-_=F+—A=+H 67 278 345
Reconciliation of carrying amount - [REEH - HZ - -MF
Year ended 30 November 2024 +—B=t+HILEE
At 1 December 2023 R-ZE-_=F+=-F—H 67 278 345
Addition NE 232 263 495
Depreciation 4 (221) (161) (382)
At 30 November 2024 R-ZZE-_NE+-HB=+H 78 380 458
At 30 November 2023 RZZZ=F+—A=+H
Cost DN 100 1,644 1,744
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (33) (1,366) (1,399)
Net carrying amount REFE 67 278 345
At 30 November 2024 R-EB-_M&E+-B=+H
Cost AR 232 1,671 1,903
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (154) (1,291) (1,445)
Net carrying amount REFE 78 380 458
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

13.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

Lease liabilities

FHEEEREEERE ©)

HEAR

2024 2023
—E-QmE =E ==

RM’000 RM'000

BFEFT 5 F T

Current portion BNHEAEB 55 266 204
Non-current portion SEBNEAEE 640 602
906 806

The Group leases various office premises and motor vehicles
for its operation and the lease terms ranging from five to nine
years (2023: two to nine years). The total cash outflow for
lease was approximately RM403,000 (2023: approximately
RM315,000) for the year ended 30 November 2024.

At 30 November 2024, the weighted average effective interest
rate for the lease liabilities of the Group was 4.7% per annum
(2023: 5.9%).

During the year ended 30 November 2024, certain motor
vehicles under hire purchase arrangements have fully paid and
subsequently reclassified to property, plant and equipment.
These motor vehicles were fully depreciated at the date of

reclassification.

AREGDHEEZER AR MNZ W SE
NHEEBZH HENTRZEAFTSE
(ZF—=ZF: —FNF) REBE_Z
“NE+—A=+HILtFE HENE
&R HEREY A E 403,000 (ZF
T =4 A #315,0005T) °

R-ZZE_WNF+—A=+H A&£EHA
EREMNMETHERFTHEBL7%
(ZZFE-=4F :59%) °

RBE-ZT_NE+—-—A=1+HILHF
T ETUSBENRIRNBENRED
PENR HBREEFOEAWE - S
REE ZERBEEFHHEZBE R
2HE -
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

14, EFREE

Internally
developed
technologies

W ERBE B Z RH
RM’000
55 F T

Reconciliation of carrying amount — Year ended 30 RHEHR-BE-_T_=F1+—A

November 2023 =tHLEFE

At 1 December 2022 R-ZZE-_—F+—-A—H 2,045
Additions NE 134
Amortisation B (2,019)
At 30 November 2023 RZTEZ=F+—HA=+H 160

Reconciliation of carrying amount — Year ended 30 BREBEHEKE-BE_-_FT_-_NE+—4

November 2024 =tHLEE
At 1 December 2023 RZZF-_=F+=-A—H 160
Amortisation BN (152)
At 30 November 2024 R-Z-N&E+—-A=+H 8
At 30 November 2023 RZZE-_=F+—A=+H
Cost B AR 14,648
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss RETEE RO EE 1B (14,488)
160
At 30 November 2024 R-ZE-_WE+—-A=+H

Cost X Ax 14,648
Accumulated amortisation and impairment loss Bir# i RBERERE (14,640)
8
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Development costs represented costs incurred at the
development phase of certain new technologies, which are
capitalised and amortised (if applicable) in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in Note 2 to the consolidated

financial statements.

At 30 November 2024 and 2023, all the intangible assets are

available for use.

The Group carried out annual impairment test for intangible
assets where an indicator of impairment appears by comparing
their recoverable amounts to their carrying amounts at the end
of the reporting period. At 30 November 2024 and 2023, the
management is of the view that the intangible assets were not
impaired as their recoverable amounts exceed their carrying

amounts.

14.

BEEE &)

FERAERNE TR 2 R
EEZRA  HREREBEEMBGERERM
HCPTE 2 @A R T LN E AL R 8 3
(fe@A)

R-EBE-_NER-_FTE_ZF+—HA=+
B FrEaEmEEYRIHER -

AEBEBRBEHREBEFEEZ
e S EEREE REEEHRR
ERRETFERENR R
FRZZZ=F+—A=+H BEE
REEMEELERE BETKRBS
EBAHEmE -
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

15. SUBSIDIARIES 15. KB E
Details of subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period are as RIEHR KB AT GEBOT -
follows:
Place of Paid-up/registered Attributable equity interest Principal activities and  Legal form of corporate
Name of subsidiary incorporation  share capital held by the Company  place of operation existence
MEATER EMALES BE/ZREA RREMEEGER  EEEDRESHY RAREHNEREA
2024 2023
CECME et
Directly held by the Company
ARAEERE
Excel Elite Global Limited The BVI United States Dollar (“US$") 100% 100% Investment holding, Private limited liability
13,890 Hong Kong company
Excel Elite Global Limited RERZES 13800Em([EL)) REER &R LERRAA
Indirectly held by the Company
ARAFERE
Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM5,200,502 100% 100% Provision of system Private limited liability
integration and company
computer related
services, Malaysia
Mixsol Sdn. Bhd. SREE $5155,200,5027 REZGEAREMEE LEERAR
R - BRAED
Concorde Asia Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia RM5,000,000 100% 100% Provision of IT products  Private limited liability
(2023: RM500,000) and services, Malaysia ~ company
Concorde Asia Sdn. Bhd. ERAER 555,000,007 RUESANRER LRS- LEARAA
(ZEZ=% - 85000007 SREE
Tandem Advisory Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia RM1,500,000 100% 100% Provision of management  Private limited liability
advice and consultancy ~ company
services for computer
software and information
technology, Malaysia
Tandem Advisory Sdn. Bhd. B 5 #4,500,0007 REBBERTMHERER LEBRAT
Rt ERERREN
MR - SRAES
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16. EZRHEMEWAKE
2024 2023
—ZBMEF —EF-=
Notes RM’000 RM’000
k3 V-1 & E¥FT
Trade receivables from third EWE=/F2E5
parties W R E 4,008 5,141
Less: Loss allowance B BB EE 28 (1) (108)
16(a) 4,007 5,033
Other receivables H fth fE W FRIE
Deposits, prepayments and e BRRKEREAMD
other receivables FEWFRIE 179 345
4,186 5,378

(a) Trade receivables from third parties

The Group normally grants credit periods of up to
30 days, from the date of issuance of invoices, to its
customers as approved by the management on a case

by case basis.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss

(a) EWE=H2E5EKHE

AEE-REZEHNERAETP
RYREREEHEHBERELAR
Rt EE0RZEER -

RBEHR  RERAHE D2

allowance) based on invoice date at the end of the B o REWHRIE (KBRS
reporting period is as follows: ZEREBRSTWT ¢

2024 2023
—EBE-ME =&
RM’000 RM’'000
FETT FF T
Within 30 days 30K A 507 2,782
31 to 60 days 31E60K 2,151 782
61 to 90 days 61ZE90K 570 293
91 to 180 days 91E 180Kk 393 k8]
181 to 365 days 181&E 365K - 670
Over 365 days HB365K 386 375
4,007 5,033
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 16. EZRHMEWRKE &)

(a)  Trade receivables from third parties (continued) (a) EURE=H2EZEWKREE)
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis RIBEHR B BHE S 2
of the trade receivables (net of loss allowance) by due EZEWMFKIE (N EEEE)
date is as follows: ZEREBRAITAT ¢

2024 2023

ZE-NF —ZT=-=

RM’000 RM’'000

BT F8FoT

Not yet due K EA 507 2,782
Past due: A

Within 30 days 30K 2,151 888

31 to 60 days 31E60K 570 293

61 to 90 days 61E90K 188 11

91 to 180 days 91E 180K 205 127

181 to 365 days 1812365k 273 557

Over 365 days B #B365K 113 375

3,500 2,251

4,007 5,033
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

17.

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 17. BHREERGHNAEE
LIABILITIES
2023
TEET =4
Notes RM’000 RM’000
Bt B¥TFr G For
Contracts in progress EITHHER
Contract costs incurred plus EEAAHRAMEEREF
recognised profits less RS BERER
recognised losses to date 72,099 75,578
Less: progress billings received & : B W & FEUH# [E 708
and receivable (72,979) (76,219)
(880) (641)
Analysed for the reporting ERERB 2D :
purpose:
Contract assets BREE 17(a) 667 423
Contract liabilities EHBE 17(b) (1,547) (1,064)
(880) (641)

There was no retention held by customers on services
contracts at 30 November 2024 and 2023.

At 30 November 2024 and 2023, the contract assets and
liabilities are expected to be received or settled within 12

months.

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
assets and contract liabilities with customers within IFRS 15
during the year ended 30 November 2024 are as follows:

RZZE-_NER-_ZT-_=F+—A=+
B BFITERREAOEERES -
R-E-_NER_T_=4+—A=+
B AWEERBEEHEM2EARK
A=

HE_Z-_MF+—-—A=1+BILFE "
REIR B RS R F15REE RN AT
FrIMZAEHNEEZANEERAGNE
BB (TR IERRFE R E LN &R
VEEZEE)WT
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

17. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 17. GHEEREGHNEE®
LIABILITIES (continued)
(a)  Contract assets (a) BHREE
2024 2023
—EBMF —E =
RM’000 RM’'000
FEFT 5 FoT
At the beginning of the reporting NS = e
period 423 1,051
Recognition of revenue TR Uk = 537 289
Transferred to trade receivables @R EEHREKFIE (293) (917)
At the end of the reporting period R #R&E HiR 667 423

There is an increase in the overall contract activities

and customer base of the Group for the year ended 30

November 2024 and the ongoing contracts at the end

of the reporting period, thereby increasing the amount

arising from the recognition of revenue.

HE_Z-_WE+—-—HA=+HIL
FE AEEBRBANEDHRE
FREAMEN  ERHEHR
SEA LB PTIE I - W E
BRWEMELENTE -

(b)  Contract liabilities (b) EHEE
2024 2023
ik —T-=%F
RM’000 RM’'000
B¥TFr HHFT
At the beginning of the reporting 2R HiH
period 1,064 771
Receipt in advance TEM FRIE 1,428 775
Recognition of revenue R (945) (482)
At the end of the reporting period R ¥R&E HiR 1,547 1,064

At 30 November 2024, the aggregate amount of

transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance

obligations is approximately RM17.6 million (2023:

approximately RM9.5 million). The Group expects

the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied

performance obligations will be recognised as revenue

within one year or less.
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

18.

19.

RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES

The Group had obtained banking facilities on issuance of
bank guarantees granted by certain creditworthy banks. Such
facilities were guaranteed by the restricted bank balances.
At 30 November 2024, the Group had utilised approximately
RM156,000 (2023: approximately RM384,000) under such
facilities for issuing bank guarantees to customers in respect of

the Group’s fulfilment of related contracts.

BANK DEPOSIT AND BALANCES AND CASH

18.

19.

2 PR B R 1T AR

REBERBITHETAGEBRTE
HZRITHERIMBRTHE - GEME
HXBHIRITERTER R AEEE
THBEGOME  ASER-_ZTZIF
T A=+THRARTLETRITERE
FAZBMEIRTH5%156,0000T (= F

=4 A5 #384,0000T) °

RIOTERRERKURRE

2024 2023
—E-E —E-=F

RM’000 RM’'000

BEF R EF T

Cash at banks and in hand RITRFEERES 1,448 1,616
Short-term time deposits S HAE BRE K 1,636 1,594
3,084 3,210

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
floating bank deposit rate. Short-term time deposits are made
for three months, and earn interest at the prevailing deposit
rates. The Group can withdraw the short-term fixed time
deposits anytime before the maturity date without incurring any

significant bank charges.

RITHEAEREHFBRITHFRA
KEF BN ERRERAE - MHIEHER
RE={EA - AR TR FREUF
B REE R N2 HA B AT RE B 52 BUE
EHER MAGELETAERNRITE
Ao
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. EZRHMEMNRE
2024 2023
—ZTMFE —E =

Note RM’000 RM’'000
HaE BEFT 5 FT

Trade payables from third ENE=F2E 5 EARE
parties 20(a) 372 986

Other payables H it FE 1A

Accruals and other payables FET & A R E fth FE AT FRIE 3,250 3,187
3,622 4,173

(a) Trade payables from third parties

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis

of the trade payables based on invoice date is as

(a) ENE=FZEZEAREA

RBEMR  REZEHEADZ
BHRNRAZIREDTAT

follows:

2024 2023
ZE-NF —T==

RM’000 RM'000
HHEFT HTFor
Within 30 days 30K A 371 985
31 to 60 days 31E60K - =
61 to 90 days 612£90K - -
91 to 180 days 91E 180K - =
181 to 365 days 181E 365K - =
Over 365 days #RiB365K 1 1
372 986

The credit term on trade payables is up to 90 days.
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

21. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 21. FTEEE
2024 2023
—EEFE —E-=

RM’000 RM’'000
BT EEFT
Interest-bearing borrowings (secured) &FEEBE (FEH) 749 790

Carrying amounts of interest-bearing ARUTFHERZHEEER

borrowings that are repayable (Note) BREE (M)

Within one year —FR 44 42
One to two years —EWF 47 44
Two to five years MZERF 153 147
Over five years HBAhE 505 557
749 790

Note:  The interest-bearing borrowings, with a clause in their terms

that gives the lender an overriding right to demand repayment

at their sole discretion, are classified as current liabilities even

though the management does not expect that the lender would

exercise its rights to demand repayment. The amounts due are
presented based on scheduled repayment dates set out in the

loan agreements.

The interest-bearing borrowings represent amounts due to

a bank in Malaysia with a maturity period of 15 years at 30

November 2024.

At 30 November 2024 and 2023,

the interest-bearing

borrowings bore a floating interest rate at the bank’s Base

Lending Rate minus 2.10% per annum. The effective interest

rate on interest-bearing borrowings at 30 November 2024 is

4.8% (2023: 4.7%) per annum.

Kt - FEREEZHEPT—GRERETER
AEBE—UEN AIREZERE
*Exi}a?‘%ﬁmmfiiﬁji?ﬁﬁﬁ

/\Hﬂﬂ%xi% R RER
u+§1 DERRBAEE °E‘J/Hﬂ
TMEEHE}EEZ#E K 155 % P L TE
BEBRBHEHET -

ATEEEER-_ZEZWE+—A=+H
B E - FHRIGF 2 BN —HE S KA
RITZHIA -

RZE_NERZT=F+—HA=+
B st EEERBTEEERAER
FEFRFENE210%:T B - R
—HE+—A=+8 FEEEZE

BHMREBFRNERLIB% (ZF=-ZF -
474)0

pil

2024 ANNUAL REPORT 4%k

125



126

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T —NF+— A=+ HILFE

21.

22.

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued)

The interest-bearing borrowings are drawn under a banking
facility. The interest-bearing borrowings are secured and

guaranteed by:

(i properties owned by the Group with aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately RM1,112,000 (2023:
approximately RM1,140,000) at 30 November 2024,
as set out in Note 12 to the consolidated financial

statements; and

(ii) guarantees provided by Mr. Chong Yee Ping and
Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang, the ultimate controlling parties

and the directors of the Group.

DEFERRED TAX

The movement in the Group’s deferred tax liabilities arising
from depreciation allowance for the years ended 30 November
2024 and 2023 was as follows:

21.

22.

SFREE @)

AEEEABRBRITRERNMZEER -
AEEEZERRERNAT

(1) RZZT-_WFE+—A=+H" &
SEMEAMEZARDFELY
B #1,112,000L (ZFE==F -
#4955 #1,140,0007T) - BB
R REMBRENTI2: &

(i) HBAEEZKERTREREE
BT R S AT R R 2 R
& e

i S B 1]

ATARBE_T_WFR-_T_=F
tT—A=tTRLFEARERBELZ
AEEZEERBAERS :

2023

—EC=F

RM’000 RM’000

BT EHFoT

At the beginning of the reporting period EA R ¥ 33 23

(Credit) Charge to profit or loss P8z (FEA) 0k (5) 10

At the end of the reporting period IR & HIR 28 33
Unrecognised deferred tax assets AERELEHREE

At 30 November 2024, the Group has tax losses arising in
Malaysia of approximately RM3,741,000 (2023: approximately
RM4,001,000) that can be offset against future taxable profits
of the respective subsidiaries, which can be carried for 7
consecutive years of assessment (i.e. from year of assessment
2025 to 2031 (2023: 2024 to 2030)). Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of the tax losses because it is
not probable that future taxable profit will be available against

which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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EREREASTEENBTEERAR
#3,741,000L (ZE=-=ZF - 45K
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RERFERBE A - A e R
FEBEI=_ZE= ﬂgfz T = —F:FH

ER(—F-_=F: —_FE-_NFEF-F
=F4F)) - ARAEERRKT KA 48
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

23.

SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each

Authorised:

BREECOVETZ EBK

EIE

At 1 December 2022, 30 November R = Z - —#+—-H—H -

2023 and 30 November 2024

—T-=F+—HA=+H

23. K&

Number of Equivalent

shares to RM
13 2 B i HERFH

k—ZE-_NE+-B=1+H 2,000,000,000 20,000,000 10,596,200
Issued and fully paid: BERITRBHEAR
At 1 December 2022, 30 November " —Z - ~F+_-H—H »
2023 and 30 November 2024 —Z-=Ff+—HA=+H
r—ZE_NE+-B=+1+H 390,000,000 3,900,000 2,067,000
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

24. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 24. AP BZHBHARRE
COMPANY
Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong BIEEAANTIENZHEST  ARQ T
Companies Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the MR R R EFEEEESHDT
Company and the movements in its reserves are set out below:
2024 2023
—E-ME —E =&
Notes RM’000 RM’'000
HaE B¥TFr f5 B F T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—ERBARZEE 15 57 57
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and BT TR R H A W SRIE
other receivables 7 8
Due from a subsidiary JE U —FEI B B A B 5K IB 2,420 4,176
Bank balances and cash WITHEB KRS - 1
2,427 4,185
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables FERT 8 A K E th FE A 3RIE 693 760
Due to subsidiaries FEAT I BB A B 3RIB 694 227
1,387 987
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,040 3,198
NET ASSETS EEFHE 1,097 3,255
Capital and reserves EXRHE
Share capital A& 2 23 2,067 2,067
Reserves ] 24(a) (970) 1,188
TOTAL EQUITY AR 1,097 3,255
This statement of financial position was approved and BRI EZER - E-ZRAF-H =+
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 February HEZEEZSHERKETZ A T35
2025 and signed on its behalf by BEERXEE
Chong Yee Ping Siah Jiin Shyang
2 BR iR
Director Director
= EZ=a
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Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

24.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 24, ARQTZHMBEMRREK 2
COMPANY (continued)
(a)  Movements of the reserves (a) REZ2H
Share Capital Exchange  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
135 (E EARE ERfE RHER @it
RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000 RM000
ST BT BT BT BB
(Note 25(a)) ~ (Note 25(b))  (Note 25(c))
(Witese) — (Wiesw)  (H22ec)
At 1 December 2022 W-E-—%#+-f—-H 28,732 57 1,056 (23,551) 6,294
Loss for the year FEER - - - (5,310) (5,310)
Other comprehensive income: Rt 2 EE
ltem that will not be reclassified to b LI T 0y Ky Ty
profit or loss EA
Exchange difference on translation of ~ #EARAFHHHK A2
the Company's financial statements ~ E%vENEE
to presentation currency - - 204 - 204
Total comprehensive income FE2EAKE (FR)
(expenses) for the year - - 204 (5,310) (5,106)
At 30 November 2023 and RZEZ=F+-fA=1AH
1 December 2023 kZZE-=F+-f-H 28,732 57 1,260 (28,861) 1,188
Loss for the year FEER - - - (2,016) (2,016)
Other comprehensive expenses: Hp2 AR
ltem that will not be reclassified to B R RR L
profit or loss EH
Exchange difference on translation of ~ #ERAFHHHK A2
the Company's financial statements ~ E¥7ERZE
to presentation currency - - (142) - (142)
Total comprehensive expenses FEZELRY
for the year - - (142) (2,016) (2,158)
At 30 November 2024 R=B-mE+-A=+A 28,732 57 1,118 (30,877) (970)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S R R Y R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T —NF+— A=+ HILFE

25.

RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share premium

It represents the excess of the net proceeds from
issuance of the Company’s shares over its par
value. Under the law of the Cayman Islands and the
Company’s Articles of Association, it is distributable
to the Company’s shareholders provided that the
Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the

ordinary course of business.
Capital reserve

For the consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group and the statement of financial position
of the Company, it represents the aggregate amount
of the issued and paid-up share capital of the entities
now comprising the Group before completion of the
Reorganisation (as defined in the prospectus issued
by the Company dated 29 September 2018) and the
Company, respectively, less consideration paid to
acquire the relevant interests (if any) upon completion

of the Reorganisation.
Exchange reserve

Exchange reserve of the Group comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from translation of the
financial statements of the Group’s subsidiaries and
the translation of the Company’s financial statements
to presentation currency. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies as set out in

Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R R R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

26. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE 26. GEBERERZENEHR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transaction (a) EEFBELXRS
During the year ended 30 November 2024, the Group HE-T-_WF+—A=+HL
recognised right-of-use assets of approximately FE AEERRAEMERE
RM495,000 which includes the down payment of it HBERFRAEEENS
approximately RM34,000 and lease liabilities of #495,000T - HF BELNF K
approximately RM461,000 at the inception date of the 34,000 EHBNREEESE
lease of office premises. #) 55 #461,0007T °

(b)  Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) RETHELEZEEHE
activities
Details of changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from AEERMETHELECAGFE
financing activities are as follows: FEAT
Year ended 30 November 2024 BE-ZE-_ImNE+—-—A=+HL

FE

Non-cash
changes
R

At At

1 December 30 November
2023 Cash flows Addition 2024
R-BZ=f R-B-@E
+=A-H ReRE #m +-A=tH
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000
BETT V-1 a BETT BETT

Interest-bearing borrowings HEREE 790 (41) - 749
Lease liabilities HEBE 806 (361) 461 906
Total liabilities from financing activities & EBEL 7 BEEE 1,596 (402) 461 1,655
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR B A

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

26. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ON THE 26. HMEBEESRERZENER @)
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) BETBELEZEGBYHIERE)
activities (continued)
Year ended 30 November 2023 BE-T-_=F+—A=1+HI
FE Non-cash
changes
FEHEEE
At At
1 December 30 November
2022 Cash flows Addition 2023
RZZ__F RZZ_=%
+=R—H Bene M +—-RA=+H
RM'000 RM000 RM'000 RM000

FETT FETT FETT FETT

Interest-bearing borrowings HEBE 829 (39) - 790
Lease liabilities HEBRE 975 (269) 100 806
Total liabilities from financing activities & EBEL 7 BEEE 1,804 (308) 100 1,596

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR MY R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ - —NF+— A=+ HILFE

27. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 27.

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed elsewhere

in the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the

following transactions with related parties:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Transaction with a director of the Company

On 23 March 2023, the Group entered into a tenancy

agreement with Mr. Siah Jiin Shyang to lease the

property commencing on 1 April 2023 and renewing on
1 April 2024. For the year ended 30 November 2024,
the related cash outflow for leases was approximately
RM194,400 (2023: approximately RM103,200).

Remuneration for key management personnel

(including directors) of the Group

BBLIX5
BREAUBBRREMEDOAREZR

%/ ERSN - KEBMEATBRTRS
(@) HAAR-ZEEZXS

(b)

N-ZB-=%F=A=-+=H" &
SEEBBELETIRER
F AT -_=—FMA—A#H
EZMEIN_ZT_MHEMA—
BEH - B=—_ZT_mW&+—A
—tHIEFE  HERERSR
HEEH A E 194,400 (= F
Z=F  AF103,200T) -

AEEFTEEEAS (BEES)
2 %

2024 2023
—E_ME =

RM’000 RM’000

BHTT E¥FT

Fee e 3 =
Salaries, allowances and e EMREMEDER

other benefits in kind 1,032 1,561

Contributions to defined TEREHE AT B 2 7R
contribution schemes 58 66
1,093 1,627

Further details of the directors’ remuneration are set out

in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Personal guarantees obtained

The ultimate controlling parties have provided unlimited

personal guarantees in respect of the interest-bearing

borrowings obtained by the Group from a bank in

Malaysia as set out in Note 21 to the consolidated

financial statements.

(c)

op

555 M 2 — S RERNE
BRI -

EMEZEARR

BANER A WIS IR M FE21 P
REREBEETECRAKRBER-—FHSF
KOG RITEG 25t BEERMH
EREALER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S R R Y R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T —NF+— A=+ HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing borrowings, lease liabilities, restricted bank
balances and bank balances and cash. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise and maintain finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
instruments such as trade and other receivables/payables
and contract assets and liabilities which arise directly from its

business activities.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
management generally adopts conservative strategies on its
risk management and limits the Group’s exposure to these risks

to a minimum level as follows:
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates. The interest rates and
terms of repayment of the interest-bearing borrowings of the
Group are disclosed in Note 21 to the consolidated financial

statements.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates had been
100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss before income tax would increase/
decrease by approximately RM7,000 (2023: approximately
RM16,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk in existence at that date. The 100 basis points
increase or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonable possible change in interest rates over the period

until the next annual end of the report period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR MR

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their
obligations to repay the amounts due to the Group, resulting
in a loss to the Group. The carrying amount of financial assets
and contract assets recognised on the consolidated statement
of financial position, which is net of impairment losses,
represents the Group’s exposure to credit risk without taking
into account the value of any collateral held or other credit

enhancements. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk

is summarised as follows:

28.

SREBEEEERRE &)

FERAR

EERREAEF AR RERBITRERRE
NAKERAZELE  BRAKERT
BiEZER - REPBRRARPHERZ
TREEMBNEEZREE GORE
EBEER) KRAKEAEZEERR -
=P R A K B (AT R G S L A
BEWZEE AKEMAEZKEER
R ER E a0  :

2024 2023

—E-NmE —F_=F

RM’000 RM’'000

BT FFT

Contract assets ABREE 667 423
Trade and other receivables B 5 R H MK GIE 4,099 5,335
Restricted bank balances Z PR HIER1T & B 156 384
Bank balances and cash RITEHRE S 3,084 3,210
8,006 9,352
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S R R Y R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T —NF+— A=+ HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group trades only with recognised, creditworthy third
parties. Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’'s credit quality and defines
credit limits for the customer. The receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis by senior management and the

Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. Credit quality
of a customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating
and individual credit limit assessment which is mainly based on

the Group’s own trading records.

At 30 November 2024, the Group had a concentration of credit
risk as approximately 63.0% (2023: 27.4%) of the total trade
receivables and contract assets were due from the Group’s
largest trade debtor and contract assets and approximately
96.6% (2023: 80.0%) of the total trade receivables and contract
assets were due from the Group’s five largest trade debtors

and contract assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR MY R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ - —NF+— A=+ HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

The Group’s customer base consists of a wide range of clients
and the trade receivables and contract assets are categorised
by common risk characteristics that are representative of the
customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL for trade receivables and contract
assets and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment. The expected loss rate used
in the provision matrix is calculated for each category based
on actual credit loss experience over the past three years
and adjusted for current and forward-looking factors to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historical data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group’s estimate on future economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. There
was no change in the estimation techniques or significant

assumptions made during the year.

The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
trade receivables and contract assets using a provision matrix
at 30 November 2024 and 2023 is summarised below.

28.

tREREEEEREEK &)

FERR )
ESEUFEREHNEE (E)

AEBEZEFPRBRECZEFAKR &
HRBFARANEERLRRARER
D MZEFBAREPERENK
AT ABIHRIA Z 88 ) - REBR
REEHEZHEE SRR FARENE
ENEHREEERE  INEREAHR
BEAFENEREEBRERBER
- AERUBRBEHEHBEEEEBELIR
STERBEER - WIRE B AR E A
BUEREREEREFELHE - BEHR
AN ERERXIREBE=FN
EREEBREHRMSER - WIRE A
REEMERRELFE  UARBRKES
T BUR B R & AR R B AT AR R B =
F AR AN S B 3 WK IR TR H SR R A EY
RFGBEMRSE G - FR - AFHR
HEHMERRRILELE -

RZEZNEFR=-ZZF_=F+—A=+
BERREEBETNE S EBRIER
EHEECERRKBEREEEEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR B A

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 28. *RRAMEEEEREE®)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EEREE)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) ESEKRFBEREGHEE (&)
At 30 November 2024 R-ZZB-WE+—-A=+H
Expected Gross carrying Loss Net carrying Credit-
loss rate amount allowance amount impaired
AEERE BEEAR EBREE HEREEE EERE
% RI°000 RIM’000 RM°000
FEFR V-7 497 FEFT
Trade receivable g5 EWE
Not past due FN - 507 - 507 No £
1 - 180 days past due HE1Z180R - 3,114 - 3,114 No &
181 - 365 days past due #H18123658 - 273 - 273 No £
Over 1 year past due BHEA—F 0.9% 114 1) 113 No £
4,008 1) 4,007
Contract assets SNEE 667 - 667 No #
At 30 November 2023 RZTEZ=F+—HA=+H
Expected  Gross carrying Loss Net carrying Credit-
loss rate amount allowance amount impaired
EHEEX ERELE BEEE BERFE =EHME
% RM000 RM000 RM000
EEFT EBFT ST
Trade receivable EEL U6
Not past due Nl - 2,782 - 2782 No &
1 - 180 days past due #E1Z180A - 1,319 - 1,319 No &
181 - 365 days past due AH1812365H 2% 568 (1) 557 No &
Over 1 year past due BEEA—F 21% 472 (97) 375 No &
5141 (108) 5,033
Contract assets SNEE 423 - 423 No &
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R MR AR A

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

At 30 November 2024, the Group recognised loss allowance of
approximately RM1,000 (2023: approximately RM108,000) on
the trade receivables. The movement in the loss allowance for

trade receivables during the year is summarised below.

28.

SREBEEEERRE &)

EERE(E)
ESEUMBEREHNEE (#)

RZZFE-WF+—HA=+H ~E£EE
REFIRUFEEREEREENEE
1,000 (= ZFE = =F : 495 #108,000
o) FRNEFHERFBZEIERES
BN TR B o

2024 2023
—E-EF T =

RM’000 RM'000

B¥TFr EETFT

At the beginning of the reporting period 7 ¥R & 2% 108 73
(Decrease) Increase in allowance BB OBd) 8 m (107) 85
At the end of the reporting period MRS HR 1 108

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables
and contract assets at 30 November 2024 and 2023.

AEEBR - ZE-_NER_TE_=F+—
B=Z1+BYERZEZERFBRENE
EFAEAEIES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B S R R Y R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T —NF+— A=+ HILFE

28.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)
Other receivables

The Group considers that other receivables have low credit risk
based on the borrowers’ strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and low risk of default.
Impairment on other receivables is measured on 12-month ECL

and reflects the short maturities of the exposures.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account the
historical actual credit loss experience over the past three
years and the financial position of the counterparties, adjusted
for forward-looking factors that are specific to the debtors
and general economic conditions of the industry in which the
counterparties operate, in estimating the probability of default
of these financial assets, as well as the loss upon default
in each case. The management of the Group considers the
ECL of these financial assets to be insignificant after taking
into account the financial position and credit quality of the

counterparties.

There was no change in the estimation techniques or significant

assumptions made during the year.
Restricted bank balances and bank balances and cash

The management considers the credit risk in respect of
restricted bank balances and bank balances and cash is
minimal because the counter-parties are authorised financial

institutions with high credit ratings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B |RME

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility. The Group has no specific
policy for managing its liquidity. The undiscounted contractual
maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period, based on the earliest date on which the

Group is required to settle, is summarised as below:

Total

Total contractual

carrying undiscounted

28.

SREBEEEERRE &)

REE <@ R

AEBEZERRBFESHEMRE
MMERFE - ANEELELBERR
ERERPHES NBSHRAEER
BABEZRMRANINHMRR (REX
SEAKEZZF A BANT

Ondemand  Over1year Over2 years

or less than but within but within

amount cash flow 1 year PATE 5years  Over5 years
KEBREH BRERS BBI1E BiBE

BEEE BREeREEE PIME BE2ER BHE5FR BiB5E
RM000 RM000 RM’000 RM000 RM000 RM’000
BEFx V-3 45 BEFx V-3 49 BEFx BEFx

At 30 November 2024 RZZ-ME+-A=+A
Trade and other payables ZHREMERTE 3,622 3,622 3,622 - - -
Interest-bearing borrowings (Note) 3t 8 & & (#/iz) 749 749 749 - - -
Lease liabilities HEARE 906 963 258 191 478 36
5,277 5,334 4,629 191 478 36

At 30 November 2023 RZEZ=%+-A=1H
Trade and other payables ZHREMERTE 4173 4173 4173 S - -
Interest-bearing borrowings (Note) it 8 & & (#/i) 790 790 790 = = =
Lease liabilities HEERE 806 913 240 186 383 104
5,769 5876 5,203 186 383 104
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R AR B A

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ T _N&+—A=+HILFE

28.

29.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

28.

tREREEEERBUER (&)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRR(E)

Note:  The amounts repayable under bank loan agreement that Bt : BEBERTERBREEEZRED
include a clause that gives the bank an unconditional right BAEMERERFDMIEIER - Zp
to call the borrowings at any time are classified under the HBAE TRITERGENERE
category of “On demand or less than 1 year”. However, the WEBZI&ER - A AEEEERE
management of the Group does not expect that the bank FEHRTETISITEMRABRENE K
would exercise such right to demand the repayment and thus, B B ZEBE (BEREEFE)
the borrowings, which included the related interest, would be BIREIRITE R B ATE T 5 R
repaid according to the below schedule as set out in the bank REE
loan agreement as follow:

Total
Total  contractual Over 1year Over 2 years
carrying undiscounted Less than but within but within
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years
ABEREH BB1F BiR2f
BEAE ReRELE A SES BHE2ER BHESER
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM000 RM’000
V-7 2 V-1 804 V-1 804 BT BT -1 227
At 30 November 2024 R-ZZ-OmE+-A=1H
Interest-bearing borrowings st EEE 749 996 79 79 236 602
At 30 November 2023 RZBZ=F+-A=+H
Interest-bearing borrowings it B fEE 790 1,072 79 79 236 678

Fair value AT(E

All financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at MEcREERS A HEER —

amounts not materially different from their fair values at 30 E-NER-—_FE-_=%F+—HF=+H2

November 2024 and 2023. NEEDRTAZ S EE5|E

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 29. BEAXER

The objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to provide returns for equity owners. The Group manages
its capital structure and makes adjustments, including payment
of dividends to equity owners, call for additional capital from
equity owners or sale of assets to reduce debts. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
years ended 30 November 2024 and 2023.

MINDTELL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e B SRR MY R

Year ended 30 November 2024 HEZ - —NF+— A=+ HILFE

30.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 7 January 2025, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with subscribers pursuant to which the Company
has conditionally agreed to issue and allot 78,000,000
subscription shares at HK$0.052 per subscription share
(the “Subscription”), which represent approximately 20.0%
of the existing issued share capital of the Company and
approximately 16.7% of the issued share capital of the
Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
subscription shares immediately after completion of the
Subscription, assuming that there will be no change in the
total number of shares in issue (other than the issue of the
subscription shares). The net proceeds from the Subscription,
after deducting all the relevant expenses, will amount to
approximately HK$4.0 million. The Subscription was completed
on 6 February 2025.

Details please refer to the Company’s announcement on 7
January 2025.

30.

HMEREHE

RZZE-_AF—AtH ARAAHER
BAGTURERZE B ARAAK
R ER TR AERD0.052% T 31T
X B2 %%78,000,000/% R BE A& 17 ([R B
FHEH]) HARAARBEETRALY
20.0% K ZHERESIHTHKE - MDA
BERBFTEADAEERNE BHITRAL
16.7% BBEBHTRNDBBTEHE
B) (MRRERMDAEITIN - IBRATE
Y% RESEMESRBFELD
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
0358R

The following is a summary of the published results and assets and THAREERROAETRERE 2B FI%E

liabilities of the Group for the last five financial year, as extracted from EREEANRABGBZHE  JHEEaHAEER
the audited consolidated financial statements in the respective annual IRRERRGEAMIEREK -

7

report.

Results of the Group for the year ended 30 November

AEEEBE+-A=tRLFEZEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
b Sl Pl T = —T_—4F —T-— ZTTHF
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

BT | BETT EETT EETT BETT

Revenue g 14,240 12,168 12,467 17,177 10,011
Loss before taxation BB ATE B (1,148) (5,430) (6,592) (6,219) (11,192)
Income tax expenses FEHmx - = (144) (48) -
Loss for the year FEEE (1,148) (5,430) (6,736) (6,267) (11,192)
Other comprehensive Hit2m (FxX) s

(expenses) income (82) (66) 242 (22) 36

Loss and total comprehensive FEEER
expenses for the year HEAXAERE (1,230) (5,496) (6,494) (6,289) (11,156)

Assets and liabilities of the Group as at 30 November
AEBR+-—A=+HEZEERERE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

-l f ol — T ——F —T—— —E-— T T

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

E¥FT E¥FT  EETT HEFT T

Non-current assets ERBEE 1,793 1,916 4,218 5,885 6,000
Current assets REBEE 8,093 9,395 11,449 25,432 26,875
Total assets HEE 9,886 11,311 15,667 31,317 32,875
Current liabilities nREBAE 6,653 6,881 5,582 14,527 10,046
Non-current liabilities kRBER 668 635 794 1,005 755
Net assets EERE 2,565 3,795 9,291 15,785 22,074
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